%

\ s
N CITY OF

YO R K Licence

}' COUNCIL
Licensing/Gambling Hearing
To: Councillors Cuthbertson, Knight and Ravilious
Date: Thursday, 5 September 2024
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: West Offices - Station Rise, York YO1 6GA
AGENDA
1. Chair

To elect a Member to act as Chair of the meeting.
2. Introductions
3. Declarations of Interest

At this point in the meeting, Members and co-opted members are
asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other
registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on this
agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the Register of
Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of the interest.

An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes
apparent to the member during the meeting.

[Please see attached sheet for further guidance for Members].

4.  Exclusion of Press and Public

To consider excluding the Press and Public during the sub-committee’s
deliberations and decision-making at the end of the hearing, on the
grounds that the public interest in excluding the public outweighs the

public interest in that part of the meeting taking place in public, under
Regulation 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005.

www.york.gov.uk



The Determination of Section 52(2) Application by Lesley
Cooke, Licensing Manager for the Licensing Authority, City
of York Council for Review of a Premises Licence in respect
of Slavic Foods, 47A Crichton Avenue, York, YO30 6EF
(CYC-069000) (Pages 9 — 215)



Democratic Services Officer:

Name: Angela Bielby
Contact Details:

Telephone — (01904) 552599
Email - a.bielby@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following, please contact the Democratic
Services officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats.

Contact details are set out above.

Alternative formats

If you require this document in an alternative language or format (e.g. large
print, braille, Audio, BSL or Easy Read) you can:

Email us at; cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk

Call us: 01904 551550 and customer services will pass your
request onto the Access Team.

g Use our BSL Video Relay Service: _
www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService s &1
Select ‘Switchboard’ from the menu. 2 LH
@l e ! We can also translate into the following languages:
Y BEMRATMESRMEEISS (Cantonese)

g3 AT AIF IS S (7l (TS It | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (olist)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)

S G T e wrau)



mailto:cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk
http://www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService




Page 1 Agenda Annex

COUNCIL

e,

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB — COMMITTEES
PROCEDURE FOR REVIEW HEARINGS

Introduction

The procedure adopted at the Licensing Review Hearing is at the
discretion of the Sub-Committee but will normally follow the pattern
outlined below.

The Council's hearings procedure is based on regulations made by the
Secretary of State under the Licensing Act 2003. The procedure is
intended as a general framework to ensure natural justice and a fair
hearing. The Sub-Committee has a duty to view all evidence presented
before them impartially.. No matter how strong local opinion may be,
Committee Members can only make decisions based on relevant
licensing issues as set out before the Sub-Committee in determining
applications.

The hearing will be in public session. However, the Sub-Committee may
exclude the public from a hearing if it considers it in the public interest to
do so. However, the decision will be made in private.

In view of the requirement to hold hearings within specified times,
the Licensing Authority will generally be unable to enter into
discussions to identify dates convenient to all parties concerned. In
exceptional circumstances, the Licensing Authority will consider
applications to adjourn hearings to a later date.

Representations at Licensing Hearings

The Applicant for the Review, and the Licence Holder(s) are permitted to
speak at the hearing. Ward Councillors, Responsible Authorities and
Representors who have made written submissions during the
consultation period will also be allowed to speak. Any party to a hearing
may be assisted or represented by any person, legally or otherwise.



Page 2

All parties will be given a fair hearing, and each party will have the same
amount of time in which to address the Sub-Committee. Each party will
have 15 minutes to address the Sub-Committee and call any
witnesses.

The Sub-Committee may take into account any documentary evidence
or other information in support of the application, representations or
notice, submitted either before the hearing or, with the consent of all
other parties, at the hearing.

If any Representors fail to attend the hearing, the Sub-Committee will
normally proceed but will consider their written representation. In
considering written evidence in the absence of a Representor,
appropriate weight will be attached, given that the person cannot be
guestioned by the Applicant for the Review, the Licence Holder(s) and
Members.

The Sub-Committee is required to disregard any information given
or evidence produced by a party or witness which is not relevant to
the application, representations, or notice, and the promotion of the
licensing objectives. Duplication should be avoided. Comments must
be confined to those points already made, although the parties may
extend or expand on their written submissions. The Sub-Committee will
have read and familiarised themselves with all the written submissions
and the issues prior to the hearing, and therefore do not require the
points to be repeated or made at length. The Applicant for the Review,
the Licence Holder(s) and Representors cannot raise substantial new
information at a hearing which has not been seen previously by the other
parties.

The Applicant for the Review or any Representor may not introduce any
new ground or objection not referred to in the written submission.
Amplification of the original representation may be made but any
additional or new representation may not be made at the hearing.

Any person behaving in a disruptive manner will be asked to leave the
hearing. If this does occur, that person may, before the end of the
hearing, submit in writing any information which they would have been
entitled to give orally.

Procedure at the Hearing




10.

Page 3

Members of the Sub-Committee will appoint a chair.

The Chair will introduce the Sub-Committee Members and Officers
and welcome the Applicant for the Review, the Licence Holder(s) and
Representors (or their representatives), and establishes the identity of
all who will be taking part.

The Chair will explain to the parties the procedure that will be
followed at the hearing.

The Chair will proceed with the order of business on the agenda.

When the agenda item relating to the application is reached, the
Chair will invite the Licensing Officer to present the application.

The Licensing Officer will outline the application, confirm the
application details, introduce the report and give an update on any
recent changes.

The Chair will invite all present, one by one to ask the Licensing
Officer questions if they wish to clarify any points raised in the report.

The Chair will invite the Applicant for the Review (or their
representative) to address the Sub-Committee and present
information in support of the application and call any witnesses to
support the application, one witness at a time [maximum 15 minutes].

The Chair will invite the Licence Holder(s) and Representors (or their
representative) and Sub-Committee in the following order to ask
questions of the Applicant for the Review (or their representative)
and/or witnesses [maximum 5 minutes each party]

()  Responsible Authorities
(i) Ward Councillors
(i) Interested Parties in support of the Review
(iv) Interested Parties opposing the Review
(v) Licence Holder(s)

(vi) Sub-Committee



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Page 4

The Chair will invite the Representors in support of the Applicant’s
Review (or their representative) in the following order to address the
Sub-Committee and call any witnesses to support of their
representation [maximum 15 minutes each party]

() Responsible Authorities
(i) Ward Councillors
(i)  Interested Parties

The Chair will invite the Applicant for the Review and the Licence
Holder(s) and representors opposing the review to ask questions of
each Representor in support of the Review (or their representative)
and/or their withesses after each presentation [maximum 5 minutes
per Representor].

The Chair will invite the Committee Members to ask questions of each
Representor in support of the Review (or their representative) and/or
their witnesses after each presentation.

The Chair will invite the Licence Holder(s) (or their representative) to
present their case and call any witnesses to support their case
[maximum 15 minutes].

The Chair will invite the Applicant for the Review and Representors
(or their representative) in the following order to ask questions of the
Licence Holder(s) (or their representative) and/or witnesses
[maximum 5 minutes each party]

(i)  Applicant for the Review

(i)  Responsible Authorities

(i)  Ward Councillors

(iv) Interested Parties in support of the Review
(v) Interested Parties opposing the Review

The Chair will invite the Representors opposing the Review (or their
representative) in the following order to state the nature of their
interest in the matter, present their case and call any witnesses to
support their case [maximum 15 minutes each party]

()  Responsible Authorities
(i) Ward Councillors
(i)  Interested Parties



Page 5

17. The Chair will invite the Applicant for the Review and the Licence
Holder(s) and representors in support of the review to ask questions
of each Representor opposing the Review (or their representative)
and/or their witnesses after each presentation [maximum 5 minutes
per Representor].

18. The Chair will invite the Sub-Committee Members to ask questions of
each Representor opposing the Review (or their representative)
and/or their withnesses after each presentation.

19. The Chair will invite the Applicant for the Review (or their
representative) to summarise their case [maximum 5 minutes].

20. The Chair will invite the Representors (or their representative) in the
following order to summarise their case [maximum 5 minutes each

party]

()  Responsible Authorities

(i) Ward Councillors

(i) Interested Parties opposing the Review
(iv) Interested Parties in support of the Review

21. The Chair will invite the Licence Holder (or their representative) to
summarise their case [maximum 5 minutes].

22. The Chair will provide the Sub-Committee with a final opportunity to
seek clarification from any of the parties on any points raised, or seek
advice from the Licensing Officer on policy, or from the Legal Advisor
on law and jurisdiction.

23. When all the evidence has been heard, the Sub-Committee will
withdraw to consider the application. Before withdrawing, the panel will

confirm how the decision will be provided (see below).

Procedure after the Hearing

24. If the Sub-Committee wish to seek further clarification from any
particular party, the Democracy Officer will recall all parties back into
the committee room for the questions to be asked.

25. If possible, and always in the case of a Review of a premises licence
following a Closure Order, the Sub-Committee will make a decision
on conclusion of the hearing and only the Democracy Officer and the



26.

27.

28.

Page 6

Legal Advisor to the Sub-Committee will remain in the room with the
Committee Members. These officers will not comment on the merits
of the application, but will be present to provide advice on legal and
procedural points and to record the decision.

If the decision has been made, all the parties will be invited back into
the committee room by the Democracy Officer. The Chair will
announce the decision. This decision will then be communicated in
writing to the Applicant for the Review, the Licence Holder(s) and
Representors within 5 working days of the hearing. There can be no
further questions or statements.

If the Sub-Committee is unable to make a decision on the day of the
hearing, the decision will be made within 5 working days beginning
with the day or the last day on which the hearing was held. The
Democracy Officer will inform the parties that they are no longer
required and the decision will be communicated in writing to the
Applicant for the Review, the Licence Holder(s) and Representors
within 5 working days of the decision being made.

The notification will include information about the rights of appeal
against the determination made.



(1)

Page 7

Declarations of Interest — guidance for Members

Members must consider their interests, and act according to the

following:

Type of Interest

You must

Interests

Disclosable Pecuniary

Disclose the interest, not participate
in the discussion or vote, and leave
the meeting unless you have a
dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

Disclose the interest; speak on the
item only if the public are also
allowed to speak, but otherwise not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Affects)
OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Affects)

Disclose the interest; remain in the
meeting, participate and vote unless
the matter affects the financial
interest or well-being:

(a) to a greater extent than it affects
the financial interest or well-being of
a majority of inhabitants of the
affected ward; and

(b) a reasonable member of the
public knowing all the facts would
believe that it would affect your view
of the wider public interest.

In which case, speak on the item
only if the public are also allowed to
speak, but otherwise do not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Agenda Iltem 3

(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or
their spouse/partner.

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations,



Page 8

and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act
1992.



Page 9 Agenda ltem 5

Meeting of Licensing Act 2003 Sub- 5 September 2024
Committee

Report from the Director for the Environment, Transport and Planning

Section 52(2) Review of Premises Licence CYC/069000 Slavic Foods,
47A Crichton Avenue, York YO30 6EF

Summary

1. This report seeks Members determination of an application for a
review of a premises licence which has been made under the
Licensing Act 2003 in respect of Slavic Foods, 47A Crichton Avenue,
York YO30 6EF, premises licence number CYC/069000.

2. Name of applicant: Lesley Cooke, Licensing Manager, for the
Licensing Authority at the City of York Council

3.  Summary of Review: The application to review the premises licence
relates to the following licensing objectives.

The prevention of crime and disorder
Public safety

The prevention of public nuisance
The protection of children from harm

4.  Acopy of the application for review is attached at Annex 1, alongside
several statements and exhibits. It is summarised as follows:

This premises has been licensed by the City of York Council since
August 2021 to supply the sale of alcohol for consumption off the
premises.

The current premises licence holder has held the licence since
December 2023, however he confirmed to North Yorkshire Police
that he took over the operation of the premises in January 2022.



Page 10

On 4 December 2023 Trading Standards Enforcement Officers from
City of York Council, alongside North Yorkshire Police visited the
premises following the receipt of intelligence that illicit tobacco and
vapes were being sold. During this initial visit 242 illicit tobacco
products and 147 illicit vapes were found and seized. During this visit
North Yorkshire Police also removed one male from the premises
who did not have the right to work in the UK.

On 14 December 2023 Trading Standards Officers, Licensing
Enforcement Officers and North Yorkshire Police Officers returned
to the premises to carry out a full licensing inspection in accordance
with Section 179 of the Licensing Act 2003. During this visit further
illicit vapes were seized. The Officers spoke with the only member
of staff present who confirmed she did not know the names of the
premises licence holder or the Designated Premises Supervisor
(DPS). During this visit several licensing breaches were identified.

Following the visit on 14 December 2023 the Licensing Authority
received applications to transfer the licence and vary the DPS.

On 22 February 2024 Licensing Officers from the City of York
Council and North Yorkshire Police did a further visit to the premises.
One member of staff was present, he refused to give his details and
was arrested under suspicion of illegal entry to the UK under the
Immigration Act 1971. Further breaches of the premises licence
were identified during this visit.

The DPS was interviewed over the licensing offences, which she
admitted. She received a simple caution for these offences.

On 26 March 2024 a further visit was undertaken at the premises,
two further breaches of the premises licence were identified.

An ongoing investigation by Trading Standards is pending in respect

of the sale of illicit tobacco and vapes.

A copy of the current premises licence and plan is attached at Annex
2. The premises licence currently authorises the following:

Licensable Current Days & Hours
Activity




Page 11

Supply of alcohol 08:00 to 23:00 Monday to Sunday
(off the premises)

Opening Hours 06:00 to 23:00 Monday to Sunday

Consultation

6.

Consultation was carried out by the Applicant and the Licensing
Authority in accordance with S51(3) of the Act and Regulation 42,
Part 4, Paragraphs 29 and 38 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises
Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005, which
concerns the notification of a review and the advertisement of a
review by licensing authority. Copies of the application were served
on all responsible authorities and the premises licence holder.
Notice of the application was displayed in the vicinity of the
premises, on the exterior noticeboard at the West Offices and on the
Councils website.

A further representation was received from North Yorkshire Police;
it appears at Annex 3.

A map showing the location of the premises is attached at Annex 4.
Other Relevant Information
The premises licence was first granted in August 2021, it was

transferred to the current licence holder in December 2023. It was
described in the original application as a ground floor shop premises.

Options

10.

11.

By virtue of S52(4) of the Act, the Sub-Committee may in making
their decision take such of the following steps as it considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives:

Option 1: To modify the conditions of the licence (ie to alter, omit or
add any new condition).



12.

13.

14.

15.

Page 12

Option 2: To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the
licence.

Option 3: To remove the Designated Premises Supervisor.

Option 4: To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three
months.

Option 5: To revoke the licence.

Where the Sub-Committee takes a step mentioned in Option 1 or
Option 2, it may provide that the modification or exclusion is to
have effect for only such period (not exceeding three months) as it
may specify. Otherwise, the modification of conditions or the
exclusion of a licensable activity will be permanent.

In deciding which, if any, of these steps to take, the Sub-
Committee should direct its mind to the cause or causes of the
concerns which the application and representations identify. The
remedial action taken should generally be directed at these causes
and should always be no more than an appropriate and
proportionate response to address the causes of concern that
instigated the review.

The Sub-Committee may decide that no action is appropriate if it
finds that the Review does not require it to take any steps that are
appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.

Analysis

16.

17.

18.

The following could be the result of any decision made by this Sub-
Committee:

Option 1: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by
the premises licence holder, the review applicant or any of the
representors.

Option 2: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by
the premises licence holder, the review applicant or any of the
representors.



19.

20.

21.

Page 13

Option 3: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by
the premises licence holder, the review applicant or any of the
representors.

Option 4: This decision could be appealed by the premises licence
holder, the review applicant or any of the representors.

Option 5: This decision could be appealed by the premises licence
holder.

The decision of the Sub-Committee will not have effect until the end of
the period given for appealing against the decision, or if the decision is
appealed against, until the appeal is disposed of.

22.

Members are reminded that they may only use their discretion to
take remedial action in relation to matters that are raised by this
review and are relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Council Priorities

23.

24.

The Licensing Act 2003 has 4 objectives: the prevention of crime
and disorder, public safety, prevention of public nuisance and the
protection of children from harm.

By taking the statutory requirements of the Licensing Act into
consideration, as well as the four licensing objectives when
determining licensing applications for review the Council are
supporting the licence trade, as well as local residents and
businesses. The functions support the Council’s Plan commitments
to make York a healthier, fairer, more accessible place, where
everyone feels valued, creating more regional opportunities to help
today’s residents and benefit future generations. It supports the
particular priority for a fair, thriving, green economy for all.

Implications

25.

. Financial - N/A

. Human Resources (HR) — N/A



Page 14

Equalities — The Council recognises, and needs to take into
account its Public Sector Equality Duty under Section 149 of the
Equality Act 2010 (to have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
prohibited conduct; advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it and foster good relations between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it in the exercise of a public authority’s
functions) when setting its Statement of Licensing Policy.

Legal — The decision made by this Sub Committee is subject to
appeal rights to the Magistrates Court.

Crime and Disorder - The Committee is reminded of their duty
under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to consider the crime and
disorder implications of their decisions and the authority’s
responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and disorder
in the city.

Information Technology (IT) — N/A
Property — N/A

Other — none

Risk Management

26.

27.

All Members of the Licensing Act 2003 Committee have received full
training on the Act and the Regulations governing hearings. They
are aware that any decision which is unreasonable or unlawful could
be open to challenge resulting in loss of image, reputation, and
potential financial penalty.

The report details the options available to the panel in determining
the application and recommends that a decision be reached. There
are no risks involved with this recommendation.

Recommendations

28.

Members determine the application.

Reason: To address the application for review received as required
by the Licensing Act 2003.



Page 15



Page 16

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Helen Sefton Director of Environment, Transport

Senior Licensing Officer and Planning

Ext 1526 James Gilchrist
Report N Date | 13.08.202
Approved 4

Wards Affected: Clifton Ward

Annexes

Annex 1 - Copy of application for review of premises licence, plus
appendices

Annex 2 - Copy of premises licence, including layout plan

Annex 3 — Representation by North Yorkshire Police

Annex 4 - Map showing location of premises

Annex 5 - Legislation and Policy Considerations



Page 17

=ZS  city of

YORK CITY OF YORK COUNCIL
Licensing Services, Hazel Court EcoDepot, James Street, York, Y010 3DS

COUNCIL

Application for a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure your answers
are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish to
keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

| Lesley Cooke of Public Protection (insert name(s) of appticant) apply for the review of a premises
licence under section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below
(delete as applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or club premises, or if none, ordinance survey map reference or
description

Slavic Foods
47A Crichton Avenue

Post town: York Post code: YO30 6EF

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Mr Aziz Hossainzada

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)
CYC - 069000

Part 2 — Applicant details

| am Please tick v yes
1 An interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a) A person living in the vicinity of the premises
b) A body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises
c) A person involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) A body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

2 A responsible authority (please complete (C) below)

O <0 oooao

3 A member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) below)




Page 18

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Mr

Surname

Mrs

Miss

Ms

First names

Other title
(for example, Rev)

| am 18 years old or over

Current postal address
if different from
premises address

Post Town

Daytime contact telephone number

Email address (optional)

Please tick v Yes

Postcode

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name

Address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail (optional)




Page 19

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name: Public Protection — Lesley Cooke, Licensing Manager

Address:

Public Protection
City of York Council
Eco Depot

Hazel Court

York, YO10 3DS

Telephone number (if any): 01904 552422

E-mail (optional):

This application to review relates to the following licensing objectives(s)
Please tick one or more boxes v/

the prevention of crime and disorder
public safety

the prevention of public nuisance
the protection of children from harm

R A

HPON =

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1)

| make this application on behalf of the Licensing Authority, City of York Council (CYC), who wish to
seek a review of the above premises licence as the licensing objectives:

e the prevention of crime and disorder

e public safety

e the prevention of public nuisance

e the protection of children from harm

have been undermined on several occasions.

Mr Hossainzada has been the premises licence holder since 15 December 2023, he confirmed to the
police that he took over the operation of the premises in January 2022, as detailed in PC Samantha
Bolland’s Statement at Annex 2.

On 4 December 2023 CYC Trading Standards Enforcement Officers and North Yorkshire Police
Officers (NYP) visited this premises following the receipt of intelligence that illicit tobacco and vapes
were on sale. During the visit Officers seized 242 illicit tobacco produces and 147 illicit vapes.

During this visit NYP Officers also removed the lone male, identified as
working in the premises as he did not have the right to work in this country.

NYP Officers also tried to contact the person named on the premises licence as licence holder and
designated premises supervisor (DPS) without success.

On 14 December 2023 CYC Trading Standards Enforcement Officers, CYC Licensing Officers and
NYP Licensing Officers did a further visit to this premises, to undertake a Section 179 licensing
inspection under the Licensing Act 2003 (2003 Act). During the visit a quantity of illicit vapes were
seized. Alenhol was displayed within the premises. The lone female, identified as '

-, -sorking in the premises could not confirm the details of the licence holder or the DPS.

During the inspection several breaches of the premises licence and the 2003 Act were identified,
these are detailed in Jemma Kettlestring’s statement at Annex 1.




Page 20

Following this visit applications were received by the licensing authority to transfer the premises
licence and vary the DPS.

On 22 February 2024 CYC and NYP Licensing Officers did a further visit to the premises, to
undertake a Section 179 licensing inspection. A lone male was working at the premises, he refused
to supply his information to Officers, due to this additional NYP resources were requested to attend
the premises. As the male refused to provide his information to NYP Officers he was arrested under

suspicion of illegal entry under the immigration Act 1971. It was ascertained that the male was,
T i 1. As detailed in PC Samantha Bolland’s statement at Annex 2.

During this visit the DPS, ! arrived at the premises, the Section 179 licensing
inspection was undertaken. Several breaches of the premises licence were identified, these are
detailed in Jemma Kettlestring’s statement at Annex 1.

Due to the breaches of the premises licence the DPS, W , attended Fulford Road
Police Station for an interview. In a pre-prepared written statement, she admitted the offences, she
was issued a simple caution for Section 136, of the 2003 Act, offence of ‘unauthorised licensable
activities’ which had take place at 47a Crichton Avenue, York, for which she was the DPS.

! accepted the simple caution.

On 26 March 2024 CYC and NYP Licensing Officers, along with Home Office Immigration Officers did
a further visit to the premises, to undertake a Section 179 licensing inspection. - awas
working at the premises. Two breaches of the premises licence were identified, these are detailed in
Jemma Kettlestring’s statement at Annex 1.

Due to the illicit tobacco and vapes, the failure to transfer the premises licence and vary the DPS, and
the breaches of the premises licence and 2003 Act, | would ask that the premises licence is revoked.

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 2)

Trading Standards Enforcement Officers are in the process of taking legal action (prosecution) against
Mr Hossainzada with regards to the illicit tobacco and vapes.

Two statements and five exhibits from Jemma Kettlestring, Licensing Enforcement Officer are
attached at Annex 1.

A statement and three exhibits from PC Samantha Bolland, NYP Licensing Officer are attached at
Annex 2.

A statement from Glyn Jones, Immigration Officer at the Home Office is attached at Annex 3.

Please tick v' yes
Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before?

Day Month  Year

If yes please state the date of that application

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state what
they were and when you made them

N/A

Please tick v Yes

* | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities and the v
premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, as appropriate



Page 21

e | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application will be
rejected

e ITIS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT
2003 TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (See guidance
note5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature:
Date: 12 July 2024

Capacity: Licensing Manager

Contact Name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated with
this application (please read guidance note 6)

Victoria Waudby
Legal Services

City Of York Council
Station Rise

Post town: York Post code: YO1 6GA

Telephone number (if any): 01904 554350

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail your e-mail address (optional):

victoria.waudby@york.gov.uk

This authority is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers and to this end may
use the information you have provided on this form for the prevention and detection of fraud.
It may also share this information with other bodies responsible for auditing or administering
public funds for these purposes.




Page 22



Page 23

City Of York Council
Jemma Kettlestring
Exhibit Ref: JK/1

27 June 2024

EXHIBIT

This is the Exhibit JK/1 referred to in the statement of Jemma Kettlestring, dated 27 June
2024.



Page 24



Page 25

%

"“’; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

s

LICENSING ACT 2003
PREMISES LICENCE

Schedule 12
Part A

Premises licence number
CYC - 069000

Part 1 Premises details

Postal address of premises:

Slavic Foods
47A Crichton Avenue

Post town: York Post code: YO30 6EF

Telephone number: 07475 582245

Expiry date: This licence has no expiry date.

Licensable activities authorised by the licence: —
Supply of Alcohol

— —— ]

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
08:00 - 23:00 08:00 - 23:00 08:00 - 23:00 08:00 - 23:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

08:00 - 23:00 08:00 - 23:00 08:00 - 23:00



Page 26

'The Opening Hours of the Premises

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
06:00 - 23:00 06:00 - 23:00 06:00 - 23:00 06:00 - 23:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

06:00 - 23:00 06:00 - 23:00 06:00 - 23:00

Where the licence authorises suppliés of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies:

Off the premises

Part 2

N;u;, (registereﬁi&dress, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder
of premises licence:

Name: Mr Aziz Hossainzada
Address: 24 Newcomen Green
Middlesbrough
TS4 2DP

Telephone number: None

Email address: None

Registered number of holder, for exampgcﬁnpany_number, charity number (where |
applicable):

N/A

| Name, address and telephone_riumber of Eesﬁated' 'premises supervisqo_r where the |
premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Name: Wera Eliza Kalinowska

Address: { o2

Telephone number: None




Page 27

Personal licence number aniissuing authority of personil licence held by _
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the
supply of alcohol:

City of York Council
CYC 070372

Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions
MANDATORY CONDITIONS IN RELATION TO THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

1. In accordance with section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence
authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following conditions.

2. The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence
a) ata time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence, or
b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended.

3. The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must
be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

4. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that
an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must
ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age
verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth
and either —

a) a holographic mark, or

b) an ultraviolet feature.

MANDATORY CONDITION - ALCOHOL PRICING

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 —
a) “duty’ is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979,
b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula - P = D+(DxV)
where —
i. P isthe permitted price,




Page 28

i. D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

ii.  Vis the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force
a premises licence ~

i.  the holder of the premises licence,
i. the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
ii. the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under
such a licence;

d) “relevant person” means, in refation to premises in respect of which there is in force
a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in
question; and

e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value
Added Tax Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall

be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest
penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day") would be different from the permitted price on the
next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the
second day.

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
Licensing Objectives

General

1. A documented staff training programme shall be provided to all members of staff in
respect of:

» the sale of alcohol

» age verification policy

= conditions attached to the licence
« permitted licensable activities

» the licensing objectives

- opening times of the venue.

These records will be kept for a minimum of a year and will be made available upon
request by any responsible authority.

2. A digital colour CCTV system will be installed to cover the premises and recorded
coverage will include areas to where public have access.



Page 29

o It will be maintained, working and recording at all times when the premises are
open.

« The recordings should be of good evidential quality to be produced in court or other
such hearing.

« Copies of the recordings will be kept available for any Responsible Authority for 28
days. Subject to data protection requirements.

o Copies of the recordings shall be made available to any Responsible Authority
within 48 hrs upon request. Subject to data protection requirements.

» Copies of the recordings will display the correct time and date of the recording.

3. Alcoholic drinks purchased in the premises may only be taken off the premises in
sealed containers.

4. A Refusals Register and Incident Report Register will be kept. Such documents will
record incidents of staff refusals of alcohol sales to under-age or drunk people as well as
incidents of any anti- social behaviour and ejections from the premises.

Such records shall be kept for at least one year. [For the avoidance of doubt, the one year
period relates to each respective entry in the log book and runs from the date of that

particular entry]: They will be made available immediately upon a reasonable request from
any responsible authority.

5. Clear and legible signage will be displayed asking customers to respect residents when
leaving the premises, and to leave the premises and area quietly.

6. The premises shall be cleared of customers and closed by the end of opening hours.

7. Clear and legible signage relating to acceptable proof of age identification will be
prominently displayed on the premises.

8. The licence holder will operate a Challenge 25 Age Verification Policy at the premises.
The only acceptable proof of age identification shall be a current Passport, photo card
Driving Licence, Military ID card, or identification carrying the PASS logo (until other
effective identification technology e.g thumb print or pupil recognition, is adopted by the
Premises Licence Holder).

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

No hearing held



Page 30

Annex 4 — Approved Plan

Plan Number: Signed and dated August 2021

For and on behalf of Date: 14 August 2021

The Corporate Director of Place 15 December 2023 (Transfer & DPS Variation)
Licensing Services Phone: 01904 552422

Hazel Court EcoDepot Email: licensing@york.gov.uk

James Street Website: www.york.gov.uk/licensing

York YO10 3DS



Page 31

47 ich Avenu
Clifton, York, North Yorkshire, YO30 6EF

The premises will be used for the sale of Alcohol as identified on the above plan

No alcohol will be consumed on the premises, just sold from the premises

No fixed structures will obscure the access points. Counter area is set to the centre of the
shop with fitted and free-standing racking set within the shop areas

No raised floors, stairs efevators or lifts within the premises

No public toilet. Staff toilet located in an outbuilding to the rear of the premises

Kitchenette set to the rear of shop with sink and fitted base units.

Two smoke alarms located in Shop Areas

VVvyvy

VVVYY

Rear Access and
Escape Point

Shop Area
20'11" x 8'8”
(6 37m x 2 Gifim)

Counlur

Shop Area
218" x 1357
(6.60m x 4.08m)

Saie of Aicohar

Licaisenke oznyity \
Stare LA '
106" x 41" h" P
@lamxi2am) N J ¥
Ny g

L ' y.

\ 4

Covered Area
.
Ground Ficor Front fccess and
Approximate Floor Area Escape Point

849 9q. f#

{78.90 sq. m)

0 Im  2m  3m  4m

Scale 1:100



Page 32



Page 33

City Of York Council
Jemma Kettlestring
Exhibit Ref: JK/2

27 June 2024

EXHIBIT

This is the Exhibit JK/2 referred to in the statement of Jemma Kettlestring, dated 27 June
2024.



Page 34

ric v
Clifton, York, North Yorkshire, YO30 6EF

The premises will be used for the sale of Alcohol as identified on the above plan

No alcohol will be consumed on the premises, just sold from the premises

No fixed structures will obscure the access points. Counter area is set to the centre of the
shop with fitted and free-standing racking set within the shop areas

No raised floors, stairs elevators or lifts within the premises

No public toilet. Staff toilet located in an outbuilding to the rear of the premises

Kitchenette set to the rear of shop with sink and ficted base units.

Two smoke alarms located in Shop Areas

A2 28 4

VVVYY

Rear Access and

Escape Point
-
m ]
Stelf Rourn/8tore
1110 x 87"
(3.60m x 2.61m)
Shop Area X
201" x 8'8”

{8 37m x ? Giim) -

Counter

Shop Area
21'8"x 135"
(6.60m x 4 08m)

.
v
X

Stare

108 x 417 N
(3.19m x 1.24m) "\ J
“ r
N T
N Covered Area
Ground Floor Front Access and
Approximaie Floor Area Escape Point
849 8g.
{78.90 sq. m)

0 Im 2Zm  3Im  4m

Scale 1:100



Page 35

City Of York Council
Jemma Kettlestring
Exhibit Ref: JK/3

27 June 2024

EXHIBIT

This is the Exhibit JK/3 referred to in the statement of Jemma Kettlestring, dated 27 June
2024,






T

|
CRYSTAL | &
pracs.asg l R
no,mausn_:.n with Hayatis

Scan the QR code

to check the duthenticity
www.hayativapor com

By rax )

























!
i STRAWBERRY
; RASPBERRY CHERRY !CE

& e
v A
() o

Trat




J"Il

- W e T

























Page 54



Page 55

City Of York Council
Jemma Kettlestring
Exhibit Ref; JK/4

27 June 2024

EXHIBIT

This is the Exhibit JK/4 referred to in the statement of Jemma Kettlestring, dated 27 June
2024.



Page 56

47a Crichton Avenue
Clifton, York, North Yorkshire, YO30 6EF

The premises will be used for the sale of Alcohol as identified on the above plan

No alcohol will be consumed on the premises, just sold from the premises

No fixed structures will obscure the access points. Counter area is set to the centre of the
shop with fitted and free-standing racking set within the shop areas

No raised floors, stairs elevators or lifts within the premises

No public toilet. Staff toilet located in an outbuilding to the rear of the premises

Kitchenette set to the rear of shop with sink and fitted base units.

Two smoke alarms located in Shop Areas

vVVvy

VVvVY

Rear Access and
Escape Point

=
m |
Stalf KoonvSiore
11°10" x 87"
e (3.60m x 2 61m)
Shop Area
201" x g'g”

(6 37m x 2 65m)

Counter

Shop Area
219" x 135"
(6.60m x 4 0Bm)

Store -i, >< v ;

108 x41" y
(3 19m x 1.24m) b N J ’
N #
N " 'S > .
b Covered Area
Ground Floor Front Access and
Approximate Fioor Area Escape Poing
849sq. A
{78.90 sq. m)

Scale 1:100



Page 57

City Of York Council
Jemma Kettlestring
Exhibit Ref: JK/5

9 July 2024

EXHIBIT

This is the Exhibit JK/5 referred to in the statement of Jemma Kettlestring, dated 9 July
2024.



Page 58



Page 59

st GOV.UK

Find and update company information

(hitpilresources.companieshouse, gov,uk/servicelnformalion.shtmifficomplnfo)
Advanced company search (/advanced-search)

Aziz HOSSAINZADA

Filter appointments
L
Current appointments

| Applyfilter |

Total number of appointments 1

Date of birth
March 1998

SLAVIC FOODS (YORK) LTD (13425738)

Company status Active

Correspondence address 47a, Crichton Avenue, York, England, YO30 6EF
Role Active Director

Appointed on 20 January 2022

Nationality Tranian

Country of residence England

Occupation Director

Tell us what you think of this service (hitps:/www.smartsurvey.co.uk/s/getcompanyinformation/) Is there
anything wrong with this page? (/help/feedback?sourceurl=hltps:/find-and-update.company-
information.service gov.uk/officers/VKgCPOMCuuOMMISuMbR3zhUK4vA/appointments)

Policies Link opens in new tab
Cookies (https://beta.companieshouse.gov.uk/help/cookies)
Contact us Link opens in new tab




Page 60

Accessibility statement
(https://beta.companieshouse.gov.uk/help/accessibility-
statement)

Developers Link opens in new tab

Built by Companies House © Crown copyright




Page 61
i GOV.UK

Find and update company information

i

‘(htlp:Hr_ﬁ:sm.lrr.:r-:31:0rnpﬁ;-t_r__\_.i_nds;i_]gg__tt_s_;_;_-‘_:_:gou.ilk.fservir;eh'aforn1a_l_ip_|_1__._$|‘1lnlliﬁf_;gmplnfrn)
Advanced company_search (/advanced-search)

SLAVIC FOODS (YORK) LTD

Company number 13425738

Overview Filing_history People More

Registered office address
47a Crichton Avenue, York, England, YO30 6EF

Company status
Active

Company type
Private limited Company

Incorporated on
27 May 2021

Accounts

Next accounts made up to 31 May 2024
due by 28 February 2025

Last accounts made up to 31 May 2023

Confirmation statement

Next statement date 27 January 2025
due by 10 February 2025

Last statement dated 27 January 2024



Page 62
Nature of business (SIC)

» 47110 - Retail sale in non-specialised stores with food, beverages or tobacco
predominating

. Tell us what you think of this service (https:/www.smartsurvey.co.uk/s/gelcompanyinformation/) Is there
anything wrong with this page? (/help/feedback?sourceuri=https:/find-and-update.company-
informalion service.gov.uk/company/13425738)

Policies Link opens in new tab

Cookies (https://beta.companieshouse.gov.uk/hetp/cookies)
Contact us Link opens in new tab

Accessibility statement
(https://beta.companieshouse.gov.uk/help/accessibility-

ment)
Developers Link opens in new tab

Built by Companies House

© Crown copyright



Page 63

sajepdn ou ynum ¢70g Azenuef £€20T

(s98ed ¢) LT UO 9PEW JUINIIE)S UONEULIU0)) 10SD uer gz

sarepdn ou tim 707 Arentep ¥20T

(sa3ed ¢) LT UO OB JUITNI)E)S UOJBULILUO,) 10SD 92420
{T=PED|UMOP P IUIUX=1E 0]
{IUBWNI0D/7NZES XN IMINVRIA L S LOMOZIN/ATGISIY

-BUNI/BE/SZVE 1 7AUBUT0T;) THg X! Peojumog £20T Aoy 20T

(safed ¢) ¢ 01 dn opem spuNOdIIE AURdUIod OIS YV 99 €0

PROTUMO(] / MIIA uondrsaq adAy  ae(q

SION 3[doag Aoysiy Buiji MBIANIBAD
8E€LSTHET Joqunu Aueduo))

dLT CII0A) STOOA DIAVIS

(U0J8S5-PaoUBApE]) JOJBss AUSUII0s pooushpy

(OJUIGUOOZ| WIS UORELUICIUSIIAISS MN /00 S8NoYSa|UBHu0s S50IN0Sal/ 0N

uonjeunioyui Auedwod ajepdn pue puiy

{




Page 64

(AJIOISIU-DUNIJBS ZGZFE [AUBGIIoo NN ADD SOIAIES "TONSWIOUFAIEdUI00 S1EpUn-pue-puly//SCHY=1Nadinos

“ST0Y Gum S0 DUTGIATE 9194 S| (/uoh JOIUA B 090

(sa8ed 1)

(so8ed 7)

(soFed 7)

(so8ed 7)

(s28ed 7)

(o8ed 1)

(o8ed 1)

(soFed )

(T=pE0|UMO g WIUX=]21LLC!

TS IO0P P NZ Z93X SN 2D 0N LN%S LO LWZV [/ AI01SI
ZBUNSE 152 7E L/AUBLWDT; TdgX] Peojumod
(saged ¢)

pajdope sopnae
PPON - SHTOLLEY THAON =

001 49D =

LT-S0-1Z0T uo [e11ded JO Juwalelg
uoneiodaioduy

1207 dunf ] WO [OL0D
JueolIuSIS (im uosiod e se [uel] ulessnyy
yres uemdy IJA 10 S[IRI9P jo dguey)

[TOT 2unf [ UO Tuel] ulessny qres
HemV JA 10J pasueyd S[IeIdp S, 10303110

7707 Kxenue[ (g WO I0}091Ip ©
se BPRZUIRSSO}] ZIZY I JO Jusunutoddy

7707 Arenuef
07 U0 [0nuod Jueoytusis s uosiad
 SB BPBZUIESSOH] ZIZY JO UOnedrloN

7707 Arenuef
(7 U0 JOJO2IP © SE IUeI] UIBSSOY YIes
weayy Jo judunuiodde Jo uoneRUIULIIY,

7207 Ayenuef
(T Uo [01u0d Jueoryudis gym uosiad e
se [uel[ UILSSNH Jieg uemYy JO Uuonessa)

sorepdn yim gz Atenuef
(7 UO 9pBUI JUJUAJE}S UONEULIJUOD)

, 70T LN
1€ 01 dn spens spuUN0ddE AUrduIod 01T

DONIMAN

¥00Sd

TOHO

[10dV

100Sd

T0N.L

L0OSd

[0SO

\A4

TP 00 ASMNSHEUS MmNy sonU) 291AJSS SIU] JO Ulll MOA JEUM SN [[9L

120¢C
Ae]N
LT

120T
unf 7¢

[20¢
mf 7¢

[44ré
uef /T

(4414
uef /T

ot
uef /¢

a0t
e LT

(44114
uef LT

0T
AON
61



Page 65

1YyBuAdoo umoin G

3SNOH Saiuedwo) Aq jing

ge] MaUu Ul Susdo 3ur| s1adojoAs(

(JusweTEIs-ATigissaooe/d

Gey Mau Ur Susdo yury sn joejuon)
(Sanjo0o/diByMNACH SSNOUSaIUBd oo B190//:54 1) S9B00) Qgey Mau Ul Susdo yury saijog




Page 66



Page 67
4 GOV.UK

Find and update company information

:.'.""’ o o v u Wi e (T - £ =T - g . 3 TS oy
(hlip:iresources.companieshouse.gov.uk/servicelnformation,shiml#compinfo)
Advanced company search (/advanced-search)

SLAVIC FOODS (YORK) LTD

Company number 13425738

Overview Filing history ~  People More

e (fiicers
» Persons with significant conlrol (/company/13425738/persons-with-significant-control)

Filter officers

)
Current officers

| Applyfter |

2 officers / 1 resignation

HOSSAINZADA, Aziz

Correspondence address 47a, Crichton Avenue, York, England, YO30 6EF
Role Active Director

Date of birth March 1998

Appointed on 20 January 2022

Nationality Iranian

Country of residence England



Page 68

Occupation Director

IRANI, Akwan Saih Hussain

Correspondence address 47a, Crichton Avenue, York, England, YO30 6EF
Role Resigned Director

Date of birth January 1988

Appointed on 27 May 2021

Resigned on 20 January 2022

Nationality Iranian

Country of residence England

Occupation Dircetor

Tell us whal you think of this service (https:/mww.smartsurvey.co.uk/s/gelcompanyinformaltion/) 1s there
anything wrong_with this page? (helplfeedback?sourceurl=htips:/find-and-update.company-
information,service,gov.uk/company/13425738/officers )

Policies Link opens in new tab
Cookies (https://beta.companieshouse.gov.uk/help/cookies)
Contact us Link opens in new tab

Accessibility statement
(hitps://beta.companieshouse.gov.uk/help/accessibility-
statement)

Developers Link opens in new tab

Built by Companies House

© Crown copyright



Page 69

Jemma Kettlestring
Statement for City of York Council
Date: 27 June 2024

WITNESS STATEMENT OF JEMMA KETTLESTRING

1. |, Jemma Kettlestring, am a Licensing Enforcement Officer employed by the City of

York Council.

2. In this statement | set out my knowledge of Aziz HOSSAINZADA, Akwan IRANI,
Mohammed Hassan FAZIL and the Slavic Food business which occupies premises at 47a

Crichton Avenue in York.

3. I make this statement based upon the records held by the Council. The information

provided in this witness statement is within my own knowledge unless expressly stated

otherwise.

4. | produce a copy of the premises licence and plan currently in force for this premises as
exhibit JK/1.

4 December 2023 Visit

4. | have been informed by City of York Council Trading Standards Enforcement Officer

and North Yorkshire Police Officers that on Monday, 4 December 2023 City of York

Trading Standards and North Yorkshire Police, and a specially trained tobacco



Page 70

detection dog with handler, attended Slavic Foods, 47a Crichton Avenue, York.
During the visit they located and seized 184 boxes of cigarettes, 58 pouches of hand
rolling tobacco and 147 vapes. Cigarettes and hand rolling tobacco were found in a
large shopping bag in the storeroom 1, as weli as a rucksack containing one pack of
cigarettes and £135 in notes (sterling), a large box of vapes were found in storeroom
2, and a bag of tobacco products and three bags of vapes were found behind the
counterftill area, easily accessible to staff. A lone male was working behind the

counter in the shop, he told Police Officers that his name was

 _. ... Police Officers established that - bhad claimed asylum in February
2023. | am aware the normal rules for asylum claims are that applicants have to wait
12 months for the date of their claim before they can work. Police Officers took

f home due to him working within that 12-month period.

| produce a plan of the premises as Exhibit JK/2. The covered area identified on the
plan is the main entrance to the premises, the counter area is located to left of covered
area, storeroom 1 is named 'store’ on the plan, storeroom 2 is named ‘staff room/store’
on the plan. The three purple crosses indicated where tobacco and vape produces

were found; the purple tick indicates were the rucksack containing money was found.

| produce photographs of some of the illicit tobacco and vapes found as Exhibit JK/3.

| have been informed that Police Officers attempted to contact the premises licence
holder and designated premises supervisor (DPS) Mr Akwan |IRANI without success,

therefore Police Officer took the premises keys to Fulford Road Police Station for the



Page 71

owner to collect. | have been informed that Mr Aziz HOSSAINZADA attended the
police station to collect the keys, he claimed that he had been the owner of the

premises since January 2022.

14 December 2023 Visit

8.

10.

1.

On the 14 December, | attended Slavic Foods with City of York Council Trading
Standards Enforcement Officer Ellis GRIMBLEY and North Yorkshire Police
Licensing Officer PC Samantha BOLLAND, to conduct a section 179 licensing
inspection under the Licensing Act 2003. Upon entering the premises there was a
female behind the shop counter, who passed her name as V , she
produced a driver’s licence to validate her name and produced her personal licence,

number | ssued by City of York Council.

Ellis GRIMBLEY located some illicit vapes, they were found on a shelf behind the
counter/till area. 84 vapes were seized by Ellis GRIMBLEY. | completed search

booklet SB0756.

| produce a plan of the premises as Exhibit JK/4. The green cross indicated where

the vape produces were found.

Alcohol was being displayed on the shelves, behind the till and in the fridge at the rear
of the store. stated that she thought the business was taken over in

September 2021 by Mr



12.

13.

14.

18.

16.

17.

Page 72

vas informed that as she could not confirm details of the premises
licence holder or DPS, no alcohol could be sold or displayed for sale in the shop. The

alcohol was removed from display.

[ stated that she did not know how to work the CCTV. | observed PC

BOLLAND operate the CCTV and discovered that the CCTV was not recording.

| provided wvith details of how to apply for a DPS Variation.

The following breaches of the Premises Licence were identified:

a) There was no documented staff training programme.

b) The CCTV was not recording and not able to be produced to a responsible
authority.

c) There was no clear, legible signage displayed informing customers to leave the
premises quietly and to respect residents.

d) No signage was displayed to state that they operate a challenge 25 process.

The following breaches of the Licensing Act 2003 were identified:
a) The premises licence summary was not displayed.

b) A copy of the premises licence was not available at the premises.

| have seen an email logged on the council’'s system relating to this premises, dated
the 14 December 2023 from Mr IRANI to the councils Licensing Section confirming
he has not been responsible for the premises since 20 January 2002, we believe this

was an error and should have stated 2022, he stated that he wanted to transfer the

licence.



18.

Page 73

| have seen two applications logged on the council’s system relating to this premises,
on the 15 December 2023, the council Licensing Section received applications to
transfer the premises licence into the name of Mr Aziz HOSSAINZADA and to vary
the DPS into the name of Wera KALINOWSKA, the applicant stated on both

applications that they wanted the transfer and DPS variation to have immediate effect.

22 February 2024 Visit

19.

20.

21.

On the 22 February 2024, PC BOLLAND and I, reattended Slavic Foods to conduct
a further section 179 licensing inspection under the Licensing Act 2003. On arrival at
the premises, we observed that the door was propped open, and lights were on inside.
On entering the premises, we discovered that alcohol was on display and a male sat
behind the counter of the shop. | introduced myself as a City of York Council
Licensing Enforcement Officer and showed him my |.D. There was no one else
present in the shop. | asked the male for his name. He said “I can’t, shop not open.”
PC BOLLAND further asked for his name in which the male replied “| can't.” PC
BOLLAND again asked the male for his name he replied d”, he refused to
pass any further details. PC BOLLAND explained that she was a police officer and by

law, he was required to provide his details.

Due to being unable to identify who the male was PC BOLLAND left the shop to
request further police assistance. | remained in the shop with the male. During this

time the male made a phone call on his mobile phone.

Approx 10 minutes later a female entered the shop, who | know to be Wera Eliza

KALINOWSKA, the named DPS on the premises licence. | introduced myself to



22.

23.

24.

Page 74

KALINOWSKA. PC BOLLAND returned inside the shop and asked KALINOWSKA if
she knew who the male was. KALINOWSKA replied, “I don’t know his full name, |

know his name as a nick name, | met him in town.” PC BOLLAND again asked the

male for his full name, again he replied, “l can't”.

Approximately 10 minutes later North Yorkshire Police officer 731 attended the shop.
PC 731 asked the male if he had any identification on him in which he replied “no.”
PC 731 put the male in handcuffs and escorted him out to the marked police van,

where he was searched. PC BOLLAND arrested the male on suspicion of immigration

offences.

At 10:45 | returned into Slavic Foods and asked KALINOWSKA if there was anyone
else in the premises. KALINOWSKA replied “no, only us three.” | had a look around

the shop to see if there was anyone else, there was not. PC BOLLAND informed

KALINOWSKA that a licensing inspection would be conducted.

PC BOLLAND asked KALINOWSKA to show us the CCTV. | could see a TV screen
behind the counter hanging from the ceiling with CCTV images. | saw that the CCTV
was not recording. KALINOWSKA advised that the CCTV hard drive was in the ceiling
of the shop. | looked in the ceiling and saw the hard drive for the CCTV.
KALINOWSKA stated, “| opened the shop at 08:30 and got a call from my husband

at 09:15. | asked | —....... o stay in the shop and not to serve anyone.” PC
BOLLAND asked KALINOWSKA how she knew ! _ ... 1 and she replied “| met

him in town previously and he was here for a coffee”.



25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Page 75

| withessed PC BOLLAND print off the sale history from the till which confirmed a sale

had taken place at 09:34 on the 22 February 2024.

PC BOLLAND went through the licensing conditions with KALINOWSKA.
KALINOWSKA provided a refusals log which | could see had been filled in.
KALINOSWSKA was unable to produce any staff training records. There was still no
signage displayed, asking customers to respect residents when leaving the premises.
| asked KALINOWSKA if there was a copy of the premises licence on the premises,

to which she replied “no”.

The following breaches of the Premises Licence, were identified:
a) There was no documented staff training programme.
b) The CCTV was not recording and not able to be produced to a responsible
authority.
¢) There was no clear, legible signhage displayed informing customers to leave the
premises quietly and to respect residents.

d) No signage was displayed to state that they operate a challenge 25 process.

PC BOLLAND informed KALINOWSKA that she would be requesting her to attend
Fulford Rd Police Station for interview with regards to the sec 136 Licensing Act
offences. PC BOLLAND informed KALINOWSKA that the shop could remain open

but that they should not sell alcohol.

On the 12 March 2024 PC BOLLAND and | interviewed KALINOWSKA at Fulford Rd
Police Station in the company of Mr KHAN, legal representative for KALINOWSKA.

PC BOLLAND was handed a prewritten statement which stated KALINOWSKA



Page 76

admitted the offences. KALINOWSKA was interviewed. KALINOWSKA was asked if
the breaches of the premises licence had been rectified in which she replied “yes”.

She replied, “no comment” to the other questions asked.

26 March 2024 Visit

30.

31.

Tuesday, 26 March 2024 PC BOLLAND, Immigration officers Glyn JONES and Jayne
PEEL and | attended Slavic Foods. KALINOWSKA was behind the counter. The
premises licence was still not displayed, KALINOWSKA did have it on the premises
and was asked to put it on display. PC BOLLAND asked KALINOWSKA to view the

CCTV. The CCTV was still not recording, and KALINOWSKA was still not able to

provide any staff training records.

The following breaches of the Premises Licence were identified:
a) There was no documented staff training programme.

b) The CCTV was not recording and not able to be produced to a responsible

authority.

Statement of Truth

32.

| believe that the facts stated in this witness statement are true. | understand that
proceedings for contempt of Court may be brought against anyone who makes, or

causes to be made, a false statement in a document verified by a statement of truth

without an honest belief in its truth.

Signed: : .

Dated: 27 June 2024



-

Signed: -

Page 77

Jemma Kettlestring
Statement for City of York Council
Date: 9 July 2024

WITNESS STATEMENT OF JEMMA KETTLESTRING

. I, Jemma Kettlestring, Licensing Enforcement Officer City of York Council make this

statement in addition to my previous statement dated 27 June 2024

I have been informed by the City of York Council Trading Standards Enforcement
Officer that they are investigating criminal offences linked to the seizure of illicit
tobacco and vape products at Slavic Foods, 47a Crichton Avenue, York.

Slavic Foods (York) Ltd, 47a Crichton Avenue, York, England, YO30 6EF is registered
on Companies House, Company Number 13425738. Mr Aziz HOSSAINZADA is
registered as the Director for this company. He was appointed Director on 20 January
2022. | produce screenshots of the information held on Companies House website as
Exhibit JK/5.

I have been informed by North Yorkshire Police Licensing Officer PC Samantha
BOLLAND, that following the of arrest of ; 1 on the 22
February 2024, on suspicion of immigration offences, Police Officer carried out an
immigration status check will the Home Office Immigration Service, who confirmed
that had been granted permission to work on 20 February 2024. As

had permission to work, he was released by Police on the same day without

charge.

The information provided in this witness statement is to my own knowledge, unless
expressly stated otherwise.

Dated: 9 July 2024



Page 78



Page 79

STATEMENT OF WITNESS

STATEMENT OF: PC Samantha Bolland

Date: 16/05/2024

Age of Witness (if over 18 enter) : Over 18

Occupation of Witness: North Yorkshire Police Licensing Officer

Address: North Yorkshire Police, Fulford, York, YO10 4BY

This statement (consisting of 5 pages) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and | make

it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully

stated in it anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

1

I am PC 1520 Samantha Bolland, an Alcohol Licensing Officer for North Yorkshire Police and have
performed this role for the last 8 years. My role involves working with statutory partners and key
stakeholders to ensure the promotion of the four Licensing objectives, The Prevention of Crime
and Disorder, The Prevention of Public Nuisance, Public Safety and the Protection of Children

from harm, alongside compliance with the Licensing Act 2003.

Between the months of July 2023 and November 2023 Police received information from a
variety of sources stating that SLAVIC FOODS, 47A CRICHTON AVENUE, YORK, was selling

illegal cigarettes and tobacco.

As a result of the information and intelligence received by Police, the Neighbourhood Policing
Team liaised with Trading Standards at the City of York Council, and arranged to carry out a

joint visit to the premises.

At 1500hrs on Monday 4th December 2023, officers from the Neighbourhood Policing Team
attended SLAVIC FOODS, 47A CRICHTON AVENUE, YORK in company with other Police
colleagues and Trading Standards officers to conduct the joint visit, police incident number —

12230230151 refers.



5.

10.

11.

Page 80

Upon entering the shop, Officers encountered a male who was stood behind the counter, the
male is now known to be } .. Trading Standards
explained why officers were in attendance, and they commenced a search of the shop and the

storeroom.

Officers spoke with ! , who stated that he had only been working in the shop that day as
his friend was poorly, he claimed to know nothing about the workings of the shop, however he
was serving a customer at the counter when Officers entered. He also knew how to operate and

open/close the shutters on the front door.

Whilst speaking with | . Officers were made aware that an amount of foreign branded
cigarettes and tobacco had been located in the back storeroom as well as a rucksack with an

amount of cash within it, mainly in English £5 and £20 notes. The rucksack was located on the
floor

next to the foreign branded cigarettes, in plain sight, which was seized by Trading Standards.

immigration were contacted and informed Officers that | was currently claiming asylum
and that he had no right to work. Immigration advised Officers at the premises, that they would
follow up enguiries regarding ! seperately and requested full details be sent through

including details of his address.

Following it being established that ! i had no right to work in the UK, officer advised he
could not remain at the premises in whilst in a working capacity. He advised officers of his home

address and was escorted off the premises and taken home.

Officers attempted to contact the owner of Slavic Foods via mobile phone, the person listed as
the owner was Mr Akwan IRANI born yof . ST PAULS MEWS, YORK. The phone
appeared to be switched off when rung multiple times. Officers were also dispatched to attend
IRANUs address of ¢ ST PAULS MEWS, Officers attended however there were no vehicles

outside the address, and no answer to knocking.

Once the search had been concluded, officers made attempts again to contact IRANI on his



12,

13.

14,

15,

16.

17.

18.

Page 81

mobile phone and his phone was still switched off. Officers located a bunch of keys and ensured
that the premises were locked and secured before leaving the shop, all relevant documentation

was completed and the keys were booked into police property.
PC Nicola Manning captured the visit on police issue body worn video.

On Tuesday 5th December 2023 PC Manning received an enquiry from the front counter at
Fulford Road Police Station, York, from a male stating that he was the owner of Slavic Food and
he was asking for the keys to the shop, which were held in the property store, at Fulford Road
Police Station. As the officer was not present at Fulford, she contacted the male by phone, who
identified himself to be Aziz HOSSAINZADA born : ;, who stated that he lived at |
NEWCOMEN GREEN, MIDDLESBROUGH, TS4 2PD.

HOSSAINZADA stated that he was the owner of Slavic Foods and that he had bought the

business from Akwan IRANI on 20th January 2022, after entering into an agreement.

HOSSAINZADA was asked if he had any documentation in relation to ownership of the shop, he
stated he did not. HOSSAINZADA was informed that the only person the keys could be passed
to legally, were IRANI, as he was shown on the Premise Licence as the current Premise Licence
Holder. PC Manning verified the details of the Premise Licence Halder with PS Jackie Booth,

Force Licensing Manager, who provided her a copy of the current premise licence.

HOSSAINZADA was asked how often he visited the shop in York as his address isin
Middlesbrough, he replied stating not very often, maybe every week or so. He stated he usually
has a female member of staff working for him however he could not remember her name when

asked. He was asked who the male working the day before was and he stated he did not know.
On 14th December 2023 at approximately 0930hrs, Jemma KETTLESTRING, Ellis GRIMBLEY,
both from City of York Council and myself visited the premises to conduct a $179 Inspection

under the Licensing Act 2003, following on from the above visit by colleagues.

At this time we spoke to a female called W and she confirmed that her



18.

20,

21,

22.

23.

24.

Page 82

employer was HOSSAINZADA. Due to concerns that the premises licence had been transferred
without responsible authorities being notified and no one being able to contact the registered
Premise Licence Holder, | . was advised to notify her employer immediately that it
was suspected that the premises had no current Designated Premises Supervisor and until such
times that responsible authorities had written notification as to w
could be sold or should be on display.

jemma KETTLESTRING provided details of how a new application could be submitted for a

[+}]
(%]

DPS, and on the 15th December 2023, North Yorkshire Police received notification of transfer

and DPS variation for the premises. The new DPS was listed as KALINOWSKA.

On Thursday 22nd February 2024 at 09:55 hours, | was on duty in plain clothes when | attended
Slavic Foods, 47A Crichton Avenue, York, YO30 6EF in company with Jemma Kettlestring
Licensing Enforcement Officer, City of York Council, to conduct a Section 179 Licensing

Inspection.

Upon arrival the shop door was wedged fully open and the lights and till were turned on. A male
| now know to be, | AN, DOB 1 3 was present and sat behind the
till. | asked the male for his details to which he replied, in broken English, * WHY, | DON’'T

WORK HERE'.

was asked multiple times what his details were as it appeared he was working at the
shop and he was the only person present on the premises. He stated that he had been asked to
look after the shop until Wera, who | know to be Wera Eliza KALINOWSKA who is the

Designated Premise Supervisor, returned as she was five minutes away.

KALINOWSKA arrived approximately 10 minutes later and stated she had received a call from
her daughters schoal, Clifton Green and had to go. She had left the male she knew as

to look after the shop until she returned, and he was not serving customers.

After numerous attempts to get | details from him and KALINSOWSKA, | then called

for a marked unit to attend the premises. At 10:39 hours | arrested | i on suspicion of



Page 83

illegal entry under The Immigration Act 1971, as | was not able to verify his details and he was

refusing to verify who he was and | was sighted on the previous information from the visit on
14th

December 2023 referred to above and needed to verify who the male was. He was then
transported to custody at Fulford Road Police Station by PC 731 SIMPSON, where his detention

was authorised.

25. Jemma Kettlestring and | then conducted a Section 179 Licensing Inspection with
KALINOWSKA. Numerous breaches of the Premise Licence conditions were identified,
including:
¢ Condition 1 - no staff training
* Condition 2 — CCTV was not recording any footage, there was no CCTV retention
* Condition 5 — no quiet signs

¢ Condition 7 — no proof of age identification posters

26. | asked KALINOWSKI for a copy of the till receipts for the mornings transaction and there was
only one recorded at 09:34 hours, at which time KALINOWSKA had stated she had not been
present. | asked for a copy of the receipt, which she supplied me with. KALINOWSKA stated that

must have served a customer as no-one else was present at the premises at that time.

27. | then advised KALINOWSKA that she would be formally interviewed for the Section 136 offence
of unauthorised Licensable activities for non-compliance with premise licence conditions and

that she should inform the Premise Licence Holder.

28. Jemma Kettlestring gave KALINOWSKA the details to contact City of York Council as she asked
how she could stop alcohol sales if she was not present at the premises going forward. She was
advised that she could advise City of York Council Licensing in writing that she wished to be
removed as the Designated Premise Supervisor with immediate effect.

We left the premises shortly after.

29. At 10am on 12th March 2024, | interviewed KALINOWSKA at Fulford Police Station, as a

voluntary attendee, in relation to the Section 136 offence of unauthorised Licensable activities
for



30.

31.

Page 84

on-compliance with premise licence conditions which were previously identified.

Also present were Jemma Kettlestring from City of York Council Licensing and Mr Khan, legal
representative for KALINOWSKA. KALINOWSKA gave a pre-prepared statement, which | exhibit as
SB/2, fully admitting Section 136 offences.

On 28th March 2024 KALINOWSKA attended Fulford Police Station, York, following her previous
interview under caution on 12th March 2024, and was issued a simple caution, which | exhibit as
SB/3, by Inspector Barnett, for Section 136 Unauthorised Licensable Activities which had taken
place at 47A Crichton Ave, York, for which she was the DPS, KALINOWSKA accepted the simple

caution.

PC 1520 Bolland.
’

e 1520,



Page 85

North Yorkshire Police
PC Samantha Bolland
Exhibit Ref: SB/1

16" May 2024

EXHIBIT

This is the Exhibit SB/1 referred to in the statement of Samantha Bolland, dated 16t May

2024.

SLAVIC  FOODS  cp /)
S8/

47 & CRICHTON AVE,
CLIFTON YORK
Y030 6EF

¥+ Duplicate Receipt **

SALE ID: 1112062

AKWAN REG POS 1
THURSDAY 22 FEBRUARY 2024  09:34 000011
1 TYMBARK APPLE/KIWI 0,25L £0.75

1 No
TOTAL £0.75
VISA CARD £0.75
SALE FINALISED, ID: 1112082

VAT NO :

Thanks for your custom !



Page 86



Page 87

North Yorkshire Police
PC Samantha Bolland
Exhibit Ref: SB/2

16" May 2024

EXHIBIT

This is the Exhibit SB/2 referred to in the statement of Samantha Bolland, dated 16" May
2024.



."-

Page 88
SB[2

PECPARED  svAveMensT

— ! !
A WNERACLIZ A ek NOw St e v
S ps Foltenass s

Ll

DT SEPTEMRE 2ol 3 LEEAS oy 2uiE ac A LA S
AT sufnikk eS|

AND T mAET SR By STATE AT Tue S0@e (e &G VE Th
_ DeThua Ik L-QRS-TL-V

s)_L = e naeN A NMNKGE Mo

fo neckim Tha A AP R -
L) APP Lo xmMliasy,  \ B raenThs Aen 2 (o v P SRaand |
5> N Mip DEtesmbal 208 7 REahm M et e Ay AE

D7 Swspet SNQE,A“T“H.@L:,,,,Q@_EE 2oiE AMD Tus  2ESPomd T

S Rupsivie Tug

SteleE Aiualsuine

ILe hE&ATTL, Tuwere a5
_ &Eer~ & BPTA P

LelenSioe 2 = (@R maaSTY

“‘)'ﬁﬂ_?ﬂ-t—_ Whs Aise Bemn  Seml ol Stsut oo M Ralle DuE

To Rome  ~BwPel &nc®) AT Tut TinE f Tz Mlemes
|

— S

| L BOmic 2 AM oo f Tum PG cen Mk
| SiamEn « o .
Dawen ¢ 2ol 2y




Page 89

North Yorkshire Police
PC Samantha Bolland
Exhibit Ref: SB/3

16t May 2024

EXHIBIT

This is the Exhibit SB/3 referred to in the statement of Samantha Bolland, dated 161" May
2024.



Page 90
° S& 32

RESTRICTED (}‘3{3 ] )

e SIMPLE CAUTION

Voluntary Attendee No. VA240000526
A/S No | :
Offender’s surname KALINOWSKA Forename(s) WERA D.0.B Male /
Female
Ethnicity Code PNC:1 16-point +1: W09
Address _ ..... Postcode
O CCUP AT ON i o s o T e i we s as v ETE emes G s e T S e newe s o
Details of the offence(s)
| Sequential Offence (include a full description of the offence — this must be detailed enough to record the
' No offence accurately on databases)

(1) Carry on unauthorised licensable activity - Licensing 2024/02/22 -- On 22/02/2024 at 47A, 47A
CRICHTON AVENUE, YORK, UK YO30 6EF you carried on a licensable activity, namely the sale by
retail of alcohol , from SLAVIC FOODS, 47A CRICHTON AVENUE, YORK UK YO30 6EF , otherwise than
under and in accordance with an authorisation issued under the Licensing Act 2003

-- LEGISLATION: 'Contrary to section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003.'
-- CCCJS CODE: 'LG03028'

--ACPO:'12.21.122.1'

-- PNLD CODE: 'H5428' -- NO REPLY

Please read the declaration helow and make sure you understand it before you sign.

1 1have been informed before completion of this form of my right at any time to consult and
communicate with a solicitor and that free and independent legal advice is available. | have
/ admitted to committing the offence(s) shown above. | was informed following that admission
that a simple caution would be offered to me. A simple caution is not a criminal conviction, but |
understand that details of the caution will be kept on police databases. A record of this simple
caution will be kept; simple cautions will be entered on the Police National Computer if they
have been administered for a recordable offence.

2 | have been informed of the evidence against me and the decision by the Police / €rewn—
/ Prosecution Service to administer a simple caution. | understand that | do not have to accept a
simple caution.

3 If new evidence comes to light suggesting that the offence(s) | have committed are maore serious,
/ you might still take legal action against me.

4 If there are any victims esult of these offences, they might still take civil action against me
and you might giveTny name and address to the victims so they can do this.

5 If I am charged with another offence and | go to court, you will tell the court that | have received
this simple caution.

RESTRICTED

—

i"\i



Page 91 <82
RESTRICTED B (P 9 Z}

6 If I apply for certain jobs, either paid or unpaid, and the organisation requires me to have a

_criminal records check via the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS check), you will disclose this
/ simple caution on a Standard or Enhanced Disclosure Certificate. (DBS checks may be requested
by an employer for jobs or voluntary work where you work with vulnerable groups including
children, as well as for other sensitive jobs involving a high level of trust).

7 If the offence | have admitted is included in the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006
(Prescribed Criteria and Miscellaneous Provisions) Regulations 2009 (as amended), accepting this
simple caution means | riay not be allowed to do certain activities which involve working with
children or adults: You have told me if this is the case. | will be committing an offence if | carry
out (or try tocarry out) any of those activities. You will provide details of this caution to the
Disclosure and Baring Service, who may consider me for inclusion in the Children’s Barred List
and /‘or the Adults Barred List which are lists kept by the Disclosure and Barring Service in
reaching decisions about the suitability of persons to work with vulnerable groups.

8 If the offence | have admitted is a sexual offence, | understand that accepting this simple caution
may mean that you'will add my name to the Violent and Sex Offender Register and | will have to
agree to certdin conditions you explain to me. You have told me if this is the case and explained
the ggn’&itions I need to agree to, and | agree to those conditions.

9 lunderstand that accepting this simple caution may mean that some countries will not allow me
to live there permanently, and some may not allow me to visit (for example, on business, for a
holiday or as a student).

10 | understand that the simple cattion may not preclude a subsequent prosecution and that it will
not preclude a civil actip«ﬁ:\uaggrieved party.

| have read / have had read to me the contents of this form and understand that my signature
confirms that | understand the consequences of the simple caution being issued to me.

| agree to accept a simple caution for the offence(s) shown above.

] }q
-y 'j
Signature of person cautioned: ! - .. Date 28/03/2024
Signature of appropriate adult (Where APPHCADIE): ...........ceveiiicieeieiseieeee e eeseesersesessessesseserseneseeseesenns
Caution administered by Rank / Job title Constable No ......... o A TN - |
1MP \ViSs
StAtION.Ic1csevesse. ommm S S R e Signature! i
TEILINO oo b b s a s abiad Date 28/03/2024 ... snessnens

D g Wkapratoy

RESTRICTED



Page 92



Page 93

Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE IE

Approved for Immigration Enforcement use — April 2014

WITNESS STATEMENT

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B

URN | GRJ | 6633 | 01052024 | 01

Statement of. Glyn R Jones

Age if under 18: over 18 (if over 18 insert ‘over 18)) Occupation: Immigration Officer

This statement (consisting of 1 (one) page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and
belief and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully
stated in it anything which | lennw tn e false, or do not believe to be true.

- a—

Signature:.............. o el (witness) Date: 01/05/2024

[ am the person named above and I am employed by the Home Office as an Immigration Officer. I am currently a member
of the Arrest Team, Yorkshire & Humberside Immigration Compliance and Enforcement (YHICE) based at Waterside
Court, Kirkstall Road, Leeds LS4 2QB. I have been employed by the Home Office since October 2003. My position as an
Immigration Officer grants me access to information held on systems that record the details of individuals who have had

reason to have contact with the Home Office.

On 22" FEBRUARY 2024 I was requested by NORTH YORKHIRE POLICE to confirm whether a male, who they had
found in sole charge of SLAVIC FOODS, 47A CRICHTON AVENUE, YORK YO30 6EF on 4 DECEMBER 2023 and
on 22" FEBRUARY 2024, had permission to work. The male in question was identified as

born IRAQ.

HOME OFFICE records hold the details of a N, born IRAQ and confirm
that on 4" DECEMBER 2023 he did not have permission to work. HOME OFFICE records also show that on 10" MAY
2023 that Mt was issued a HOME OFFICE document in his identity stating, “NO WORK”.

HOME OFFICE records also show that N, born IRAQ had been granted

permission to work from 20" FEBRUARY 2024. However, HOME OFFICE records show that the HOME OFFICE
document that would prove that Mr 1eld such permission was not produced until 5" MARCH 2024.

This statement was made and completed on WEDNESDAY 15t MAY 2024 at 13:50hrs.

-

Signature: .../ ........ et Signature witnessed by N/A e

| 204 | Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE




Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Approved for Immigration Enforcement use — April 2014

Witness contact details

Name of witness: Home address: Postcode:
Home telephone No: Work telephone No:
Mobile: E-mail address:

Preferred means of contact (specify details):

Best time to contact (specify details):

Gender: Date and place of birth:
Former name: Ethnicity Code (16 + 1):
DATES OF WITNESS NON-AVAILABILITY:

Witness care
a) |s the witness willing to attend court? If ‘No’, include reason(s) on form MGBS.
b) What can be done to ensure attendance?

c) Does the witness require a Special Measures Assessment as a vulnerable or intimidated witness? (youth
under 18; witness with mental disorder, learning or physical disability; or witness in fear of giving evidence or witness
is the complainant in a sexual offence case) If 'Yes’ submit MG2 with file in anticipated not guilty,
contested or indictable only cases.

d) Does the witness have any particular needs? If 'Yes’ what are they? (Disability, healthcare, childcare,
transport, disabilily, language difficulties, visually impaired, restricted mobility or other concerns?).

Witness Consent (for withess completion)

a) The Victim Personal Statement scheme (victims only) has been explainedto me  Yes [ ] No []

b) 1have been given the Victim Personal Statement leaflet Yes (] No [
¢) | have been given the leaflet “Giving a witness statement to the Home Office...” Yes [ ] No [
d) | consent to Home Office Immigration Enforcement having access to my medical record(s) in relation

to this matter (obfained in accordance with local practice) Yes [1 No [ NA[Q
e) 1consent to my medical record in relation to this matter being disclosed

to the defence Yes (] No[J] NA[
f) | consent to the statement being disclosed for the purposes of civil, or other

proceedings if applicable, e.g. child care proceedings, CICA Yes ] No [0 NA [
g) Child witness cases only. | have had the provision regarding reporting Yes [1] No [ NA QO

restrictions explained to me.

| would like CPS to apply for reporting restrictions on my behalf. Yes (] No [ NA[O
‘I understand that the information recorded above will be passed on to the Witness Service, which offers help and
support to witnesses pre-trial and at court’.

Signature of WItness: ...........cccccoeviiiiiii i, PRINT NAME: ...
Signature of parent/guardian/appropriate adult: .....................cl PRINT NAME: .......ccooiiiiiiiie e

Address and telephone number (of parent etc.), if different from above:

Statement taken by: Office / station: Time and place statement taken:

# P P H P F Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE F P # H # #




Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Approved for Immigration Enforcement use — April 2014

|l Il B [l Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE




Page 96

Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Approved for Immigration Enforcement use — April 2014

e N N

This tear off section to be completed and handed to the witness

The Home Office (Immigration Enforcement) — Contact Details
The officer dealing with your case/taking this statement is:

Officer: Rank & Number:
Office:

Telephone:

Contacl E-Mail:

Reference No:

The officer dealing with your case can help but may not always be available.

Giving a witness statement to the Home Office— what happens next?




Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Approved for Immigration Enforcement use — April 2014

Thank you for coming forward. We value your help and we will do
everything we can to help you.

The criminal justice system cannot work without witnesses. They are the
most important element in bringing offenders to justice. Now you have
made a statement, you may be asked to give evidence in court.

Is there anything else | can do?
Yes. Itis important to tell the Home Office:

« if you have left anything out of your statement or if it is incorrect

e if your address or phone number changes (trials collapse every day
because witnesses cannot be contacted in time)

« dates when you may not be able to go to court. Please contact the
officer dealing with your case to update this information as soon as it
changes. itis needed when the trial date is set.

Will the suspect (the defendant) or the defence lawyer be given my
address?

No, your address is recorded on the reverse of your witness statement
and the defendant or their solicitor only receives a copy of the front,
Also, witnesses are not usually asked to give their address out loud in
court. The defendant or their solicitor is normally told the names of any
witnesses.

What will happen to my statement?

If a suspect is charged over this incident, your statement and all the other
evidence will be passed to the Crown Prosecution Service (CPS). CPS
is responsible for prosecuting people who have been charged with a
criminal offence in England and Wales. Although they work closely
together, the Home Office, the police and CPS are separate
organisations.

Who will read my statement?

Everyone involved with the case will read your statement (e.g. Home
Office, the police, CPS, defence and the magistrate or judge).

What if someone tries to intimidate me?

It is a criminal offence to intimidate (frighten) a witness or anyone else
helping the Home Office in an investigation. If you are harassed or
threatened in any way before, during or after the trial, you should tell the
police immediately and inform the Home Office officer dealing with your
case.

Will | be told what is happening in the case?

The Home Office and CPS are improving procedures to keep victims and
witnesses up to date with what is happening but it is not always possible

to do this in every case. Remember, you can contact the Home Office at
any time if you have questions or concerns.

You will be contacted if you are needed to go to court (but it may be
some time after you gave your statement, as cases take time to prepare).
Victims of crime are usually told:

« if a suspect is charged
e about bail and what happens at court
o if the case does not proceed for any reason.

Witnesses who are not victims of the crime may not be contacted

again if;

e the suspect admits the offence and is cautioned or pleads guilty
at court

o there is not enough evidence to prosecute the suspect

¢ no suspect is identified

Will | have to go to court?
You will only have to go to court if the defendant either:

= denies the charge and pleads 'not guilty’ or

» pleads guilty but denies an important part of the offence which
might affect the type of sentence they receive.

If you are asked to go to court, the prosecution and defence

lawyers will ask you questions about your evidence. You will be

able to read your statement to refresh your memory first. If you

have given a statement and are then asked to go to court to give

evidence, you must do so.

You will be sent

¢ a letter telling you when and where to go
» an explanatory leaflet.

What will happen if | don’t go to court?

If you have any problems or concerns about going to court, you
must inform the officer dealing with your case as soon as
possible. If you have to go to court but there is reason to believe
that you will not go voluntarily, the court may issue a witness
summons against you. If you still fail to attend without good
reason you may be found ‘in contempt of court’ and arrested.

Where will the case be heard?

Most cases are heard in the magistrates’ court. More serious
crimes are heard in the crown court before a jury.

Who can help?

Every court has a free and confidential Witness Service and you
can contact them before the trial. Their trained volunteers offer:

« information on what happens in court

« emotional support and someone to talk to in confidence

= someone to to be with you in court when you give evidence

o a visit to the court before the trial, including where possible, a
look around a court room so you know what to expect.

The officer dealing with your case will be able to provide you with
contact details.

The Witness Service does not discuss evidence or give legal
advice.

Extra Help is available to support vulnerable or intimidated
witnesses. If the CPS lawyer thinks that a witness qualifies for
this help, known as 'Special Measures’, he/she will ask the court
for permission to use them. The Witness Service, police or
Home Office will tell you what is available and the police or CPS
will be able to discuss your needs.

they cannot discuss the specific details of the case.

Victim Support and Witness Service

The Victim Support scheme operates from a number of locations across the UK, and their volunteers are specially
trained to provide free and confidential information, support and advice.

All victim and witnesses will be offered support from Victim Support’s Witness Service, which is independent,
confidential and free. This support will include someone to talk to, a quiet place in which to wait and a chance to see
the court before the day of the trial. Although the Witness Service volunteers will explain the court process to you,

Victim Support Helpline
0 30 90

Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE




Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Approved for Inmigration Enforcement use — April 2014

L. B B B B B

The Witness Charter

The Home Office Immigration Enforcement is not a signatory of the Witness Charter but adheres to the spirit of charter

which sets out the standards of service that witnesses can expect to receive at every stage of the Criminal Justice
process from:

e The Home Office, if you are a witness to a crime or incident

= Other Criminal Justice agencies and lawyers, if you are asked to give evidence for the prosecution or defence in a
criminal court

The standards apply to all witnesses, regardless of whether you are also the victim. If you are a victim of a crime, you
have rights that are set out in the Code of Practice for Victims of Crime.

Unlike the Victims Code of Practice, the Witness Charter is not set out in law, and there may be constraints which
affect the ability of the Criminal Justice agencies to provide the service to all witnesses in all cases.

Being kept updated on progress during the investigation:
After you have given a statement, if the offence is of a very serious nature and the Home Office have told you that
you are likely to be called to give evidence in court, the Home Office will seek to update you:

= at least once a month on the progress of the case until the point of closure of the investigation or
« at the point at which someone is charged, summoned, or dealt with out of court.

Being kept updated on progress after charge:
If you are a prosecution witness to any offence, the Home Office will seek to inform you:

e when the defendant has been charged

» whether the defendant has been released on bail to attend court , or help in custody until the first court appearance
¢ what relevant bail conditions apply.

Further information about being a witness can be downloaded from the Crown Prosecution Service website at
www.cps.gov.uk/victims witnesses

| B B MW Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE




Page 99

>,

'
Sy CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Y,

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE

Schedule 12
Part A

Premises licence number

Part 1 Premises details CYC - 069000
Postal address of premises:

Slavic Foods

47A Crichton Avenue

Post town: York Post code: YO30 6EF

Telephone number: 07475 582245

Expiry date: This licence has no expiry date.

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
08:00 - 23:00 08:00 - 23:00 08:00 - 23:00 08:00 - 23:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

08:00 - 23:00 08:00 - 23:00 08:00 - 23:00




Page 100

The Opening Hours of the Premises

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
06:00 - 23:00 06:00 - 23:00 06:00 - 23:00 06:00 - 23:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

06:00 - 23:00 06:00 - 23:00 06:00 - 23:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies:

Off the premises

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder
of premises licence:

Name: Mr Aziz Hossainzada
Address: 24 Newcomen Green
Middlesbrough
TS4 2DP

Telephone number: None

Email address: None

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable):

N/A

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Name: Wera Eliza Kalinowska

Telephone number: None




Page 101

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the
supply of alcohol:

City of York Council
CYC 070372

Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions
MANDATORY CONDITIONS IN RELATION TO THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

1. In accordance with section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence
authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following conditions.

2. The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence
a) at atime where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the
premises licence, or
b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal
licence or his personal licence is suspended.

3. The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must
be made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

4. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that
an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must
ensure that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age
verification policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth
and either —

a) a holographic mark, or

b) an ultraviolet feature.

MANDATORY CONDITION - ALCOHOL PRICING

1. Arelevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or
off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 —
a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula — P =D + (D x V)
where —
i. P isthe permitted price,




e)

Page 102

D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value
added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol,

“relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force
a premises licence —

the holder of the premises licence,

the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under
such a licence;

“relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force
a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in
guestion; and

“value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value
Added Tax Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall
be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest

penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the
next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the
second day.

Annex 2 — Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
Licensing Objectives
General

1. A documented staff training programme shall be provided to all members of staff in
respect of:

» the sale of alcohol

» age verification policy

+ conditions attached to the licence

* permitted licensable activities

* the licensing objectives

* opening times of the venue.

These records will be kept for a minimum of a year and will be made available upon
request by any responsible authority.

2. A digital colour CCTV system will be installed to cover the premises and recorded
coverage will include areas to where public have access.



Page 103

e It will be maintained, working and recording at all times when the premises are
open.

e The recordings should be of good evidential quality to be produced in court or other
such hearing.

e Copies of the recordings will be kept available for any Responsible Authority for 28
days. Subject to data protection requirements.

e Copies of the recordings shall be made available to any Responsible Authority
within 48 hrs upon request. Subject to data protection requirements.

e Copies of the recordings will display the correct time and date of the recording.

3. Alcoholic drinks purchased in the premises may only be taken off the premises in
sealed containers.

4. A Refusals Register and Incident Report Register will be kept. Such documents will
record incidents of staff refusals of alcohol sales to under-age or drunk people as well as
incidents of any anti- social behaviour and ejections from the premises.

Such records shall be kept for at least one year. [For the avoidance of doubt, the one year
period relates to each respective entry in the log book and runs from the date of that
particular entry]: They will be made available immediately upon a reasonable request from
any responsible authority.

5. Clear and legible signage will be displayed asking customers to respect residents when
leaving the premises, and to leave the premises and area quietly.

6. The premises shall be cleared of customers and closed by the end of opening hours.

7. Clear and legible signage relating to acceptable proof of age identification will be
prominently displayed on the premises.

8. The licence holder will operate a Challenge 25 Age Verification Policy at the premises.
The only acceptable proof of age identification shall be a current Passport, photo card
Driving Licence, Military ID card, or identification carrying the PASS logo (until other
effective identification technology e.g thumb print or pupil recognition, is adopted by the
Premises Licence Holder).

Annex 3 — Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority

No hearing held



Page 104

Annex 4 — Approved Plan

Plan Number: Signed and dated August 2021

For and on behalf of Date: 14 August 2021

The Corporate Director of Place 15 December 2023 (Transfer & DPS Variation)
Licensing Services Phone: 01904 552422

Hazel Court EcoDepot Email: licensing@york.gov.uk

James Street Website: www.york.gov.uk/licensing

York YO10 3DS


http://www.york.gov.uk/licensing

Page 105

>

S
o CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

&

PREMISES LICENCE SUMMARY

Part B
Premises licence number
Part 1 Premises details CYC - 069000
Postal address of premises:
Slavic Foods
47A Crichton Avenue
Post town: York Post code: YO30 6EF

Telephone number: 07475 582245

Where the licence is time limited the date:

This licence has no expiry date.

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
08:00 - 23:00 08:00 - 23:00 08:00 - 23:00 08:00 - 23:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

08:00 — 23:00 08:00 — 23:00 08:00 — 23:00




Page 106

The opening hours of the premises

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
06:00 — 23:00 06:00 — 23:00 08:00 — 23:00 06:00 — 23:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

06:00 — 23:00 06:00 — 23:00 06:00 — 23:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies:

Off the premises

Name and (registered) address of holder of premises licence:

Name: Mr Aziz Hossainzada
Address: 24 Newcomen Green
Middlesbrough
TS4 2DP

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where
applicable): N/A

Name of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the
supply of alcohol:

Wera Eliza Kalinowska

State whether access to the premises by children is restricted or prohibited

A challenge 25 policy will be in operation

For and on behalf of Date: 14 August 2021

The Corporate Director of Place 15 December 2023 (Transfer & DPS Vary)
Licensing Services Phone: 01904 552422

Hazel Court EcoDepot Email: licensing@york.gov.uk

James Street Website: www.york.gov.uk/licensing

York YO10 3DS



http://www.york.gov.uk/licensing

Page 107

Police Representation
Slavic Foods
47A Crichton Avenue
York
YO30 6EF

City of York MY
Council

Licensing Services

Hazel Court

EcoDept

James Street

York

YO10 3DS

12t August 2024

Dear Sir/fMadam,

As the Force Licensing Manager for North Yorkshire Police, | am delegated on behalf of the
Chief Constable to respond to all applications under the Licensing Act 2003. This
representation relates to the licensed premises, Slavic Foods 47A Crichton Avenue York and
for which the police deem that the premise licence holder Mr Aziz HOSSAINZADA and
designated premises supervisor Wera Eliza KALINOWSKA have undermined the licensing
objective Prevention of Crime and Disorder, which will be evidenced below.

Mr Aziz HOSSAINZADA has been the premises licence holder and Wera KALINOWSKA the
designated premises supervisor since the 15" December 2023. The premises have
licensable activities as follows: -

Supply of Alcohol (off-sales ) Mon- Sun 0800-2300hrs

On four separate occasions between December 2023 and August 2024 North Yorkshire
Police licensing officers have attended Slavic Foods and, on each occasion, have found that
there has not been compliance with the authorisation issued by the licensing authority and
breaches of the premises licence have been committed.

Both the premise licence holder and designated premises supervisor have a responsibility to
ensure that when any licensable activity is undertaken there must be compliance with the
premises licence conditions and the licensing objectives are upheld.

On 4 December 2023, officers from the Neighbourhood Policing team, in company with
colleagues from City of York Trading Standards attended Slavic Foods, due to concerns that
the premises was selling illegal counterfeit cigarettes and tobacco, police incident
122302330151 refers.

On arrival one person was found inside the shop, located hehind the till area -

Trading standards officers advised | the reason for the visit and
began a search of the premises. During the search located behind and underneath the till
was a large amount of foreign branded tobacco and cigarettes. Also located was vapes not
properly branded and too strong for the UK market.



Page 108

__ .. stated he was working in the shop, covering for a friend who was ill. Immigration
was contacted, and confirmed that in February 2023 slaimed asylum with them
after entering the UK illenally, They stated that he cannot work until 12 months after this
date, so Feb 2024. | was subsequently returned to his home address. Attempts
were made by officers to contact the owner of the shop who due to records held with police
and council licensing was Mr Akwan IRANI.

Due to officers not being able to contact the person registered as the owner of the business,
the premises was secured and the keys brought to York police station, with a note for the
owner to contact police.

Attending officers updated police licensing in relation to the visit and requested a follow up
visit in relation to compliance with the premises licence.

On 14t December 2023, PC Samantha Bolland, North Yorkshire Police licensing officer, in
company with Jemma Kettlestring from City of York licensing and Ellis Grimbley from City of
York trading standards attended Slavic Foods. Encountered at the premises at the time was
a female Wera KALINOWSKA, who confirmed that she worked at the premises and that her
employer was Mr HOSSAINZADA. it was explained that there were concerns that the premise
licence had been transferred without responsible authorities being notified and as such the
premises was operating without a current designated premises supervisor.

Section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003 states the following: -

Where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the
following conditions.

1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence—

(a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises
licence, or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or
his personal licence is suspended.

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a
person who holds a personal licence.

KALINOWSKA was advised that no alcohol could be sold or on display until responsible
authorities had confirmation who was undertaking the role of designated premises supervisor.

On 15" December 2023 North Yorkshire Police licensing department received notification
from City of York licensing of a transfer and designated premises supervisor for Slavic Foods.
The premise licence holder was named as Mr HOSSAINZADA and the DPS as Wera
KALINOWSKA.

On 22" February 2024, PC Bolland attended Slavic Foods in company with Jemma
Kettlestring licensing enforcement officer from City of York Council to conduct a Section 179
licensing inspection. Upon arrival at the premises, which was open to the public, one male
who was sat behind the till was encountered. He was asked to provide his details, to which
he refused. Approximately ten minutes after officers had been at the premises Wera
KALINOWSKA arrived and stated that she had left the male to look after the premises whilst
she went on an errand. Due to officers being unable to obtain details from either
KALINOWSKA or the male about his identity he was arrested on suspicion of illegal entry
under the Immigration Act 1971 and conveyed to York police station. It was established at



Page 109

the police station that the male was e e—ii oo Ythe same male who had
been encountered on the visit on 4" December 2023. Immigration was notified in respect of

the matter.
In the presence of KALINOWSKA a Section 179 inspection was conducted by officers and
the following breaches of the premises licence conditions identified: -

e Condition 1 — no staff training
e Condition 2 — CCTV was not recording any footage, there was no CCTV retention
e Condition 5 — no quiet signs

o Condition 7 — no proof of age identification posters

A check of the till transactions showed a transaction at 09:34hrs that day, when HASSAN
had been present at the premises and KALINOWSKA had been away from the premises.

On 12t March 2024, Wera KALINOWSKA attended York police station where she was
formally interviewed under caution in relation to Section 136 offences in relation to the
breaches identified on 22" February 2024.

Section 136 -Unauthorised licensable activities
A person commits an offence if—

he carries on or attempts to carry on a licensable activity on or from any premises otherwise
than under and in accordance with an authorisation,

She provided a pre prepared statement fully admitting the section 136 offences.

On 26" March 2024 PC Bolland, Jemma Kettlestring and Glyn Jones, and Jayne Peel from
Immigration attended Slavic Foods. This was to conduct a further Section 179 Inspection to
ascertain if previous breaches had been rectified. Present at the time of the inspection was
KALINOWSKA.

The following breaches of the premise licence conditions were identified: -

e Condition 1 — no staff training on premises

¢ Condition 2 — CCTV was not recording any footage, and showed only a live
feed, there was no CCTV retention and no recorded footage stored.

On 28t March 2024 KALINOWSKA attended York Police and was issued a simple caution
in respect of the breaches identified on 22™ February 2024 (this is in line with DPP charging
decisions).

On 8t August 2024 PC Bolland and Jemma Kettlestring attended Slavic Foods to conduct a
Section 179 licensing inspection. Present at the premises was KALINOWSKA, the DPS. The
following breaches of the premise licence conditions were identified: -

e Condition 1 — no staff training on premises

e Condition 2 — CCTV was not recording any footage, and showed only a live feed,
there was no CCTV retention and no recorded footage stored.



Page 110

The section 182 statutory guidance states at para 4.61 the following: -

Every premises licence that authorises the sale of alcohol must specify a DPS. This will
normally be the person who has been given day to day responsibility for running the
premises by the premises licence holder.

KALINOWSKA who is the designated premises supervisor for Slavic Foods, and the person
who has the day-to-day responsibility for running the premises is failing to ensure
compliance with premise licence conditions. Despite being interviewed under caution and
receiving a formal police caution for Section 136 offences of unauthorised licensable activity
she continues to allow the premise licence conditions to be breached.

Given the above failings the police have no confidence in KALINOWSKA to manage the
premises effectively and ensure the premise licence authorisation is adhered to and the
licensing objectives are upheld. It is also concerning that the premise licence holder
HASSAINZADA has not taken action to ensure that persons employed at the premises have
a right to work, are competent for their role (the designated premises supervisor should be
able to ensure full compliance with the premise licence conditions) and has failed to address
the issue.

North Yorkshire Police provide evidence to the sub-committee who are entitled to take
robust, appropriate, and proportionate steps to prevent this operator from further
undermining the licensing objectives, and the police would respectfully ask members to
revoke the premise licence for Slavic Foods.

Enclosed documents-

Witness Statement 1 — PC Bolland
Witness Statement 2 — PC Bolland

Yours Sincerely,

J Booth

PS133 Booth

Force Licensing Manager
Alcohol Licensing Department
Fulford Road Police Station
York

YO10 4BY

Email: - Jacqueline.booth@northyorkshire.police.uk




Page 111



Page 112



Page 113

STATEMENT OF WITNESS

STATEMENT OF: PC Samantha Bolland
Age of Witness (if over 18 enter) : Over 18
Occupation of Witness: North Yorkshire Police Licensing Officer

Address: North Yorkshire Police, Fulford, York, YO10 4BY

This statement (consisting of 2 pages) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and | make it knowing
that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it anything which |
know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

1.

I am PC 1520 Samantha Bolland, an Alcohol Licensing Officer for North Yorkshire Police, further to my
previous statement | would like to add the following, on Tuesday 26" March 2024, | attended Slavic
Foods 47a Crichton Avenue, York, in company with Jemma Kettlestring Licensing Enforcement Officer,
City of York Council, Glynn Jones & Jayne Peel, Immigration Officers.

At this time we spoke to a female | know to be Wera Eliza KALINOWSKA, who is the Designated Premise
Supervisor. KALINOWSKI was advised that following her interview at Fulford Police Station, we were
conducting a Section 179 Licensing Inspection to ascertain if the previous breaches had been rectified. |
asked KALINOWSKA to produce a copy of the current Premises Licence, which she did. Jemma
Kettlestring and | then conducted a Section 179 Licensing Inspection with KALINOWSKA. The following
breaches of the Premise Licence conditions were identified:

e Condition 1 — no staff training on premises

e Condition 2 — CCTV was not recording any footage, and showed only a live feed, there was no
CCTV retention and no recorded footage stored.

| advised KALINOWSKA to make contact with the Premise Licence Holder as further Section 136 offences
of unauthorised Licensable activities for non-compliance with premise licence conditions had been
identified and had not been rectified. This contradicted what KALINOWSKA had stated in interview when
asked if all breaches had been rectified to which she had stated they had.

We then left the premises.




Page 114

4. On 16™ April 2024, | held a meeting with Lesley Cooke, Licensing Manager, City of York Council, and Ellis
Grimbley Trading Standards, City of York Council, and updated them with details of the visit to the
premises and the further breaches of Premise Licence conditions. | asked that if anyone from City of York
Council made contact with the Premise Licence Holder, to make me aware, as | wanted to make contact
with Mr Aziz HOSSAINZADA to update him of the actions | had taken against KALINOWSKA.

5. On Thursday 8th August 2024 at 11:30 hours, | was on duty in plain clothes when | attended Slavic
Foods, 47A Crichton Avenue, York, YO30 6EF in company with Jemma Kettlestring Licensing Enforcement
Officer, City of York Council, to conduct a Section 179 Licensing Inspection.

6. At this time we spoke to a female | know to be Wera Eliza KALINOWSKA, who is the current Designated
Premise Supervisor. KALINOWSKI was advised of the reason for our visit. | asked KALINOWSKA to
produce a copy of the current Premises Licence, which she did. Jemma Kettlestring and | then conducted
a Section 179 Licensing Inspection with KALINOWSKA. The following breaches of the Premise Licence
conditions were identified and have been consistently in breach on each occasion the premises has been
visited:

e Condition 1 — no staff training on premises

e Condition 2 — CCTV was not recording any footage, and showed only a live feed, there was no CCTV
retention and no recorded footage stored.

7. 1then advised KALINOWSKA that following the breaches identified, advice would be taken as to how to
take the matter forward, as the premises was subject to a review hearing on 5" September 2024.
KALINOWSKA was unaware of these proceeding. | advised KALINOWSKA to make contact with the
Premise Licence Holder as further Section 136 offences of unauthorised Licensable activities for non-
compliance with premise licence conditions had been identified and had not been rectified.

We then left the premises.




Page 115

STATEMENT OF WITNESS

STATEMENT OF: PC Samantha Bolland

Date: 16/05/2024

Age of Witness (if over 18 enter) : Over 18

Occupation of Witness: North Yorkshire Police Licensing Officer

Address: North Yorkshire Police, Fulford, York, YO10 4BY

This statement (consisting of 5 pages) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and | make

it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully

stated in it anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

1

I am PC 1520 Samantha Bolland, an Alcohol Licensing Officer for North Yorkshire Police and have
performed this role for the last 8 years. My role involves working with statutory partners and key
stakeholders to ensure the promotion of the four Licensing objectives, The Prevention of Crime
and Disorder, The Prevention of Public Nuisance, Public Safety and the Protection of Children

from harm, alongside compliance with the Licensing Act 2003.

Between the months of July 2023 and November 2023 Police received information from a

variety of sources stating that SLAVIC FOODS, 47A CRICHTON AVENUE, YORK, was selling

illegal cigarettes and tobacco.

As a result of the information and intelligence received by Police, the Neighbourhood Policing
Team liaised with Trading Standards at the City of York Council, and arranged to carry out a

joint visit to the premises.

At 1500hrs on Monday 4th December 2023, officers from the Neighbourhood Policing Team
attended SLAVIC FOODS, 47A CRICHTON AVENUE, YORK in company with other Police
colleagues and Trading Standards officers to conduct the joint visit, police incident number -

12230230151 refers.



10.

11.

Page 116

Upon entering the shop, Officers encountered a male who was stood behind the counter, the
male is now known to be ANborn . Trading Standards
explained why officers were in attendance, and they commenced a search of the shop and the

storeroom.

Officers spoke with who stated that he had only been working in the shop that day as
his friend was poorly, he claimed to know nothing about the workings of the shop, however he
was serving a customer at the counter when Officers entered. He also knew how to operate and

open/close the shutters on the front door.

Whilst speaking with Officers were made aware that an amount of foreign branded
cigarettes and tobacco had been located in the back storeroom as well as a rucksack with an

amount of cash within it, mainly in English £5 and £20 notes. The rucksack was located on the
floor

next to the foreign branded cigarettes, in plain sight, which was seized by Trading Standards.

Immigration were contacted and informed Officers that' N was currently claiming asylum
and that he had no right to work. Immigration advised Officers at the premises, that they would
follow up enquiries regarding i seperately and requested full details be sent through

including details of his address.

Following it being established that 1 had no right to work in the UK, officer advised he
could not remain at the premises in whilst in a working capacity. He advised officers of his home

address and was escorted off the premises and taken home.

Officers attempted to contact the owner of Slavic Foods via mobile phone, the person listed as
the owner was Mr Akwan IRANI born ( of ST PAULS MEWS, YORK. The phone
appeared to be switched off when rung multiple times. Officers were also dispatched to attend
IRANI’s address of ST PAULS MEWS. Officers attended however there were no vehicles

outside the address, and no answer to knocking.

Once the search had been concluded, officers made attempts again to contact IRANI on his



12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

17,

18.

Page 117

mabile phone and his phone was still switched off. Officers located a bunch of keys and ensured
that the premises were locked and secured before leaving the shop, all relevant documentation

was completed and the keys were booked into police property.
PC Nicola Manning captured the visit on police issue body worn video.

On Tuesday 5th December 2023 PC Manning received an enquiry from the front counter at
Fulford Road Police Station, York, from a male stating that he was the owner of Slavic Food and
he was asking for the keys to the shop, which were held in the property store, at Fulford Road
Police Station. As the officer was not present at Fulford, she contacted the male by phone, who
identified himself to be Aziz HOSSAINZADA born ,, who stated that he lived at

NEWCOMEN GREEN, MIDDLESBROUGH, TS4 2PD.

HOSSAINZADA stated that he was the owner of Slavic Foods and that he had bought the

business from Akwan IRANI on 20th January 2022, after entering into an agreement.

HOSSAINZADA was asked if he had any documentation in relation to ownership of the shop, he
stated he did not. HOSSAINZADA was informed that the only person the keys could be passed
to legally, were IRANI, as he was shown on the Premise Licence as the current Premise Licence
Holder. PC Manning verified the details of the Premise Licence Holder with PS Jackie Booth,

Force Licensing Manager, who provided her a copy of the current premise licence.

HOSSAINZADA was asked how often he visited the shop in York as his address isin
Middlesbrough, he replied stating not very often, maybe every week or so. He stated he usually
has a female member of staff working for him however he could not remember her name when

asked. He was asked who the male working the day before was and he stated he did not know.
On 14th December 2023 at approximately 0930hrs, Jemma KETTLESTRING, Ellis GRIMBLEY,
both fram City of York Council and myself visited the premises to conduct a $179 Inspection

under the Licensing Act 2003, following on from the above visit by colleagues.

At this time we spoke to a female called Wera Eliza KALINOWSKA and she confirmed that her



19.

20.

21,

22.

23.

24.

Page 118

employer was HOSSAINZADA. Due to concerns that the premises licence had been transferred
without responsible authorities being notified and no one being able to contact the registered
Premise Licence Holder, KALINOWSKA was advised to notify her employer immediately that it
was suspected that the premises had no current Designated Premises Supervisor and until such
times that responsible authorities had written notification as to who was the DPS, no alcohol

could be sold or should be on display.

Jemma KETTLESTRING provided details of how a new application could be submitted for a
DPS, and on the 15th December 2023, North Yorkshire Police received notification of transfer

and DPS variation for the premises. The new DPS was listed as KALINOWSKA.

On Thursday 22nd February 2024 at 09:55 hours, | was on duty In plain clothes when | attended
Slavic Foods, 47A Crichton Avenue, York, YO30 6EF in company with Jemma Kettlestring
Licensing Enforcement Officer, City of York Council, to conduct a Section 179 Licensing

Inspection.

Upon arrival the shop door was wedged fully open and the lights and till were turned on. A male
| now know to be, | , DOB 1 was present and sat behind the
till. 1 asked the male for his details to which he replied, in broken English,  WHY, | DON'T

WORK HERE",

vas asked multiple times what his details were as it appeared he was working at the
shop and he was the only person present on the premises. He stated that he had been asked to
look after the shop until Wera, who | know to be Wera Eliza KALINOWSKA who is the

Designated Premise Supervisor, returned as she was five minutes away.

KALINOWSKA arrived approximately 10 minutes later and stated she had received a call from
her daughters school, Clifton Green and had to go. She had left the male she knew as

1, to look after the shop until she returned, and he was not serving customers.

After numerous attempts to get details from him and KALINSOWSKA, | then called

for a marked unit to attend the premises. At 10:39 hours | arrested n suspicion of



25,

26.

27.

28,

29,

Page 119

illegal entry under The Immigration Act 1971, as | was not able to verify his details and he was

refusing to verify who he was and | was sighted on the previous information from the visit on
14th

December 2023 referred to above and needed to verify who the male was. He was then
transported to custody at Fulford Road Police Station by PC 731 SIMPSCN, where his detention

was authorised.

Jemma Kettlestring and | then conducted a Section 179 Licensing Inspection with
KALINOWSKA. Numerous breaches of the Premise Licence conditions were identified,
including:

 Condition 1 — no staff training

* Condition 2 — CCTV was not recording any footage, there was no CCTV retention

* Condition 5 — no quiet signs

¢ Condition 7 — no proof of age identification posters

| asked KALINOWSKI for a copy of the till receipts for the mornings transaction and there was
only one recorded at 09:34 hours, at which time KALINOWSKA had stated she had not been
present. | asked for a copy of the receipt, which she supplied me with. KALINOWSKA stated that

must have served a customer as no-one else was present at the premises at that time.

| then advised KALINOWSKA that she would be formally interviewed for the Section 136 offence
of unauthorised Licensable activities for non-compliance with premise licence conditions and

that she should inform the Premise Licence Holder.

Jemma Kettlestring gave KALINOWSKA the details to contact City of York Council as she asked
how she could stop alcohol sales if she was not present at the premises going forward. She was
advised that she could advise City of York Council Licensing in writing that she wished to be
removed as the Designated Premise Supervisar with immediate effect.

We left the premises shortly after.

At 10am on 12th March 2024, | interviewed KALINOWSKA at Fulford Police Station, as a

voluntary attendee, in relation to the Section 136 offence of unauthorised Licensable activities
for



30.

31.

Page 120

on-compliance with premise licence conditions which were previously identified.

Also present were Jemma Kettlestring from City of York Council Licensing and Mr Khan, legal
representative for KALINOWSKA. KALINOWSKA gave a pre-prepared statement, which | exhibit as

SB/2, fully admitting Section 136 offences.

On 28th March 2024 KALINOWSKA attended Fulford Police Station, York, following her previous
interview under caution on 12th March 2024, and was issued a simple caution, which | exhibit as
SB/3, by Inspector Barnett, for Section 136 Unauthorised Licensable Activities which had taken
place at 47A Crichton Ave, York, for which she was the DPS, KALINOWSKA accepted the simple

caution.

PC 1520 Bolland. —
e

pe 18520,



Map of area

Page 121

N CITY OF

&0 YORK

COUNCIL

,‘nﬂ o e
i .'.\ __l. _._'-_‘__ A ! f

!'"T-"ﬁ"r'éé'ﬁ}t-ery

\ \

-/ ACODD0822532 - \

Date: 12 Jul 2024

Author: City of York Council

Scale: 1:1,250

>

0 0.025 0.05 0.075 0.1




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 123
ANNEX 5

Legislation and Policy Considerations
Review of Premises Licence

The following provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 apply to this application: S4
general duties of licensing authorities; s51 Application for review of premises licence;
s52 Determination of application for review; s53 Supplementary provision about
review.

The following provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club
Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005 apply to this application: Regulation 42,
Part 2 (Premises licences) and Part 4 (General) relating to applications, notices and
representations and advertising of reviews.

The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s guidance apply to this application:
Chapter 10 Conditions attached to premises licences and club premises certificates
and Chapter 11 Reviews.

The following paragraphs of the licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy
apply to this application: 8.0 Licensing Hours;11.0 Review of licences.

The Committee is reminded of their duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider the crime and disorder implications of their decisions and the authority’s
responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in the city.

The Committee is reminded that the Human Rights Act 1998 guarantees the right to
a fair hearing for all parties in the determination of their civil rights. The Act also
provides for the protection of property, which may include licences in existence, and
the protection of private and family life.

(amended 27/02/19)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 125

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 131

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 141

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 143

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 163

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 165

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 177

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 185

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 187

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 193

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 195

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 197

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 201

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 207

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 213

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 215

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	 Procedures for a Review
	3 Declarations of Interest
	5 The Determination of Section 52(2) Application by Lesley Cooke, Licensing Manager for the Licensing Authority, City of York Council for Review of a Premises Licence in respect of Slavic Foods, 47A Crichton Avenue, York, YO30 6EF (CYC-069000)
	Annex 1 - Review Application with appendices
	Annex 2 - Premises licence
	Annex 3 - Police representation
	Annex 4 - map
	Annex 5 - Legislation & Policy considerations
	Review Application - Slavic Foods
	Exhibit - JK1
	Exhibit - JK2
	Exhibit - JK3
	Exhibit - JK4
	Exhibit - JK5
	J Kettlestring Statement 1
	J Kettlestring Statement 2
	Sam Bolland - SLAVIC - signed CJA (002)
	SB1 exhibit label (002)
	SB2 - exhibit label (002)
	SB3 - exhibit label (002)
	Witness Statement - Glyn Jones
	Police Representation - Slavic Foods
	240812 - 1520 Civil statement 2
	Sam Bolland - SLAVIC - signed CJA


